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Chaprer i1

Institutional Profile/Summary of Implementation

1.1 Introduction

The Ministry of Power and Energy was established by Extraordinary Gazette No. 2289/43, dated July 22, 2022
with the main objectives of compiling, implementing, following up and evaluating policies, programs and
projects related to power and energy sectors while ensuring the energy security of the country, as well as
providing services under the scope of the Ministry in an efficient and public-friendly manner.

The Ministry of Power and Energy comprises two sections: the power section and the energy section, under
which, eight (8) entities, namely the Ceylon Electricity Board, Lanka Electricity Company (Pvt)Ltd., Sri Lanka
Sustainable Energy Authority, Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Board, Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Regulatory Council,
L.T.L. Holdings (Pvt) Ltd, Lanka Coal Company (Pvt) Ltd. and Sri Lanka Energies (Pvt) Ltd., are supervised by
the power section and four (4) entities namely, Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, Ceylon Petroleum Storage
Terminals Ltd., Petroleum Development Authority of Sri Lanka., and Trinco Petroleum Terminal (Pvt)Ltd. are
supervised by the energy section.

During 2022 and 2023, the power and energy sectors faced the most difficult time period ever recorded
in the history since the Sri Lanka gained independence. The petroleum shortage and the power outages
that prevailed in 2022 had an adverse impact on economic activities, causing public unrest and political
disturbances in the country. Since the energy crisis was further exacerbated by the country’s weak economic
performance, creating the necessity to implement well-coordinated policies and measures in order to
control the situation. Accordingly, appropriate measures were initiated to limit the energy supply to some
extent; however, managing and supplying of the energy was required by the most vulnerable sectors such as
agriculture, industries and transportation, as well as public communities had been an extremely challenging
task.

Even though Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and Ceylon Electricity Board carried out their stratergically
important key functions, they also have several issues such as operational inefficiencies, weak management,
lack of accountability, poor adaptability with the market, and overstaffing.There was a necessity to rescue
the financially struggling Ceylon Petroleum Corporation as well as the Ceylon Electricity Board and turn
them into profitable organizations and also to expedite the introduction of structural reforms, that have not
been implemented for a long time, to avoid the pressure these entities had on the government budget and
excessive dependence on commercial banks. Although the reforming actions had a short-term impact on
a large number of people, there were good results evident in 2023, which ensured energy security in the
country.

The supply of electricity has become more at stake due to facts such as the depletion of large hydro power
sources and its high sensitivity to climate change, even though it is the most cost-effective source of
electricity generation, and also due to electricity generation being highly exposed to the fluctuations in global
energy prices, as there is a high dependence on imported thermal power sources like coal and petroleum
products. To enhance the share of Non-Conventional Renewable Energy Sources in achieving sustainability in
the electricity supply, there is a necessity to establish an investment oriented environment that will draw in
investments from private and foreign financial sources for clean energy sources like wind and solar, which are
abundant in Sri Lanka.

The Government of Sri Lanka has already declared the policy of achieving 70% of electricity generation
from renewable energy sources by 2030 and achieving carbon neutrality by 2050. Under the "Nationally

Determined Contributions" (NDCs) submitted to the Office of the United Nations Framework Convention
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on Climate Change, Sri Lanka has committed to minimize carbon emissions by 5% unconditionally and
20% conditionally by 2030. In addition, the Ministry is vested with the responsibility of accomplishing the
Sustainable Development Goal of ensuring access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for
all (SDG-7).

In an attempt to reduce the effects of climate change, collective efforts have been made to promote
“Renewable Energy” and to implement “Energy Efficiency Measures” that are essential for the transition
from fossil fuel-based energy into Green Energy which ensures carbon neutrality. Thus, plans have been
made to generate electricity by targeting renewable energy sources such as solar power, wind power and
other low - cost energy sources and steps have been taken to bring in private investors. Under this policy
framework, power plants (including Solar Rooftop) with a total installed capacity of approximately 5,192
MW have supplied approximately 16,500GWh of annual electricity demand of over 7,500,000 electricity
consumers by the end of 2023.

As it is decided to close down the coal power plant (Norochcholai) by 2048, alternatives power generation
sources are needed to maintain the basic stability of the generation plan. For this reason, attempts are being
made to convert thermal oil plants into liquefied natural gas plants and introduce new combine cycle LNG
plants. Further, nuclear energy is proposed as an alternative and the approval of the Cabinet of Ministers
has obtain to develop nuclear energy sources in the country. The relevant rules and regulations are drafted
while the Agency of International Atomic Energy Agency Collaboratively engages in this. Further, the green
hydrogen roadmap and the off-shore wind power production roadmap have been prepared for studying the
new global trends like green nitrogen production.

Also, as per the policy decision taken by the government to widen the petroleum distribution opportunities
were given to other competitive parties to access the market and the licenses were given to four (04) more
competitive entities including Ceylon Petroleum Corporation to import and distribute petroleum products
in the country. According to the price formula which portrays the petroleum production cost, the fuel price
was determined monthly in 2023 and all the competitive entities worked as per the declared maximum fuel
price. Further, the regulations needed for a long time to regulate the downstream and upstream petroleum
industry were compiled in 2023 while initiating the fundamental activities to appoint a permanent regulator
to regulate the downstream petroleum industry.

A new Electricity Bill has been made with the Cabinet Sub-Committee which has been appointed to provide
recommendations for institutional reforms of the power sector. After consulting the public opinions, it will be
submitted to the parliament in future. Moreover, a cost-reflective tariff methodology for the electricity bill
was introduced and the electricity tariffs will be revised once in every six months.

At a time when the entire world has been challenged by the energy crisis, the Ministry of Power and Energy
directly faced it and continuously engaged in the process of providing electricity and other energy needs to
the Sri Lankan people and thus, this report presents the achievements and progress achieved by this Ministry
in the year 2023.

Ministry of Power and Energy




1.2 Vision, Mission and Objectives of the Ministry

Vision

“To Make Sri Lanka the Energy Hub of South Asia”

Mission

Power Section Energy Section

“Provide Quality, Reliable, Sustainable and “Enhancing Access to Low Cost Energy to Meet
Affordable Electricity for Economic National Needs by Management of Fuel Importation

Prosperity of the Nation” and Integration of Domestic New Energy Sources
into the Energy Mix, and Ensuring an Environmental

Friendly Sustainable
Energy Supply by Regulation of Energy Related
Policy Enforcement in Complying with
Relevant Laws and Regulations”

Objectives

o Supplying 70% of the electricity generation by Renewable Energy by 2030.

o Increasing Power Generation Capacity of the Country upto 7,629 MW by 2025 with the maximum feasible
development of Renewable Energy.

o Improving Transmission Network;
» Upto 1300 km in the 220 kV network by 2025
» Up to 3000 km in the 132 kV network by 2025

o Enhancing the Distribution Network to provide quality service and maintain overall domestic electrification
level.

o Reducing the Technical and Commercial Losses of the System from 9% to 8% by 2025.

o Encouraging the local manufacturing of electrical appliances.

o Converting the Power System of the country to a Smart Grid

o Ensuring the quality and reliability throughout the Fuel Supply Chain.

o Promoting efficient and effective use of petroleum products

o Ensuring more efficient, effective and safe storage and distribution of fuel throughout the country.

o Be a partner in the Energy Self-sufficiency of Sri Lanka by optimizing the production of domestic Oil and
Natural Gas by 2030.

o Implement the use of standardized modern electric appliances and Green Building concepts to promote
efficiency in electricity consumption.

o Be a leading contributor in making Sri Lanka a Carbon Neutral Country by 2050.
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1.3 Key Functions of the Ministry

e Formulation, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of policies, programmes and
projects, in relation to the subjects of power and energy, and those subjects that come
under the purview of Departments, Statutory Institutions and Public Corporations under
the Ministry based on the national policies implemented by the government.

e Provision of public services under the purview of the Ministry in an efficient and people
friendly manner.

e Reforming all systems and procedures using modern management techniques and tech-
nology, thus ensuring that the functions of the Ministry are fulfilled while eliminating
corruption and waste.

e Exploration, planning, development and supervision of activities relating to generation of
renewable electricity and other energies from sources such as solar, hydro, wind, natural
gases and waste.

e Meeting the electricity needs of Sri Lanka and safeguarding energy security.

e Management of demand to ensure energy efficiency.

e Implementing of Long Term Generation Expansion Plan.

e Making the power transmission and distribution processes efficient.

e Creation of a Smart Grid to ensure efficient use of generated electricity.

e Reduction of costs in generating electricity and removal of uncertainties during genera-
tion.

e Controlling Greenhouse Gas emissions

e Rural electrification.

e Coordination and implementation of import, refining, storage, distribution and market-
ing of petroleum-based products and natural gas.

e Petroleum production and refining
e Exploration of petroleum and natural gases and related activities.

e Matters relating to production of gas and by-products from petroleum production sourc-
es, stocks maintainence and products distribution.

e Development of infrastructure facilities in relation to the supply and distribution of fuel.

e Formulation of an appropriate energy policy for the control, regulation and utilization of
energy resources.

e Encouraging the use of solar power systems and solar battery systems to ensure the
availability of low-cost energy for households, office and factories.

e Encouraging the private sector and entrepreneurs to undertake renewable energy proj-
ects.

e Increasing energy generation using industrial and organic waste.
e Matters relating to all the other subjects assigned under the scope of the Ministry.

e Supervision of the Institutions coming under the scope of the Ministry.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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1.5 Main Divisions of the Ministry and Functions
Establishment and Administration Division

e All the administrative activities related to the Ministry.
e Proper maintenance of personal files of the Ministry staff.
¢ Management of Human Resource in the Ministry and provide Welfare Facilities.

e Prepare answers to Parliamentary Questions and arrange facilities for Parliamentary Consultative
Committee Meetings of the power and energy sectors.

e Provide administrative guidance to all the statutory bodies that come under the purview of the Ministry.

Petroleum Development Division

e Formulations and implementation of development policy decisions relating to upstream, midstream and
downstream petroleum Industries.

e Coordination of all development activities pertaining to oil and natural gas exploration and production.

e Coordination and monitoring of development and regulatory activities pertaining to the petroleum
sector.

e Coordination with the Ministry of Finance and other relevant Government Agencies, in connection with
petroleum products pricing, fuel subsidies, distribution, sales, and marketing issues.

e Issuance/renewal of licenses for the potential parties to engage in lubricant & greases, bitumen and
bunkering businesses in Sri Lanka/renewal of issued liscences and granting permissions to private parties
to import any other special petroleum products.

Renewable Energy Development Division

e Formulate policies related to Renewable Energy, Atomic Energy and Radiation sectors.

e Determine the tariffs for integrating Renewable Energy generation into the national grid.
e Coordinate Project financing and contributions

e  Facilitate Renewable Energy development.

e Coordinate with relavant parties and external institutions related to Renewable Energy, Atomic Energy
and Radiation sectors.

e Recommend Customs Clearances and Tax Relief Requests when importing goods, equipments and raw
materials for Renewable Energy projects.

e Provide recommendations for issuance/extension of required entry visa/residence visa to foreign
consultants/staff who are visting the country for Renewable Energy projects.

e Coordination of declaring areas/land acquisition for Renewable Energy development.

Generation, Transmission and Distribution Division

¢ Implementation of large and medium-scale power generation projects and all the matters relevant to
power generation, transmission and distribution.

e Introduction of Liquified Natural Gas (LNG) to Sri Lanka’s Power Sector as an environmental friendly fuel.

e Activities related to approving, implementing and acquiring of lands for Thermal Power Plant projects
and Renewable Power Plant projects.

e Coordination with the Department of External Resources and other partner agencies concerning the
aforementioned projects.

Ministry of Power and Energy




Annual Performance Report - 2023 @
Policy, Technical and Research Division

e Preparation, implementation and coordination of the National Energy Policy and Strategies.

e Actin collaboration with the Public Utilities Commission of Sri Lanka (PUCSL) in amending the provisions
of the Sri Lanka Electricity Act and enforcing the regulations, issuing policy guidelines, drafting electricity
tariffs and issuing licenses etc.

e All the technical activities related to the electricity generation, transmission, development and energy
conservation and demand side management and matters related to the prevention of Power failures,
lapses of transmission and distributions.

e Monitoring the productions and operations of the power plants.

e Coordination of the projects implemented by the Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Regulatory Council and the Sri
Lanka Atomic Energy Board.

e  Facilitation to research and development activities in Power sector.
e Activities related to the World Energy Council'

e Coordination, obtaining necessary approvals and implementation of all Memorandums of Understanding
and Cooperate Agreements comes under the scope of the Ministry.

Planning Division

e Preparation of Action Plans, Annual Performance Report and Progress Report of the Ministry.

e Preparation and reviewing of project proposals and obtaining necessary approvals for implementation.

e Preparation of Annual Budget for development projects and preparation of Ministry Capital Budget.

e Monitoring and reviewing the progress of Development projects and preparation of Progress Reports.

e Implementation of Nationally Determined Contributions of the Power Sector and supervision and
reviewing the progress of the activities on Sustainable Development Goals.

e Preparation of various reports and plans requested by the Presidential Secretariat, Prime Minister’s
Office, line Ministries, and the Treasury Departments.

Procurement Division

e Coordinate to appoint officers for various procurement committees, carrying out the activities pertaining
to the Special Standing Cabinet Appointed Procurement Committees (SSCAPC) and obtaining approvals
of the Cabinet of Ministers for the procurements of the institutions coming under the purview of the
Ministry.

e Coordinating overall procurement matters with the Ministry of Finance.

e Supervision, monitoring and when in need, providing consultation for the procurements carried out by
the institutions under the Ministry.

Finance Division

e Manage all expenditures by the parliament-approved budget allocations of the Ministry for the respective
year.

e Take actions to prepare and make payment of the salaries of the staff of the Minister and the Ministry
and attend other activities related to the salary payments.

e Make orders and supply necessary inventory items, stationeries and office equipment necessary for the
staff of the Minister and the Ministry as per their requirements.

e Proper operation and maintenance of the official Bank Account of the Ministry.
e Prepare budget estimates for the next financial year, by considering the necessary allocations required
for the expenditure of the Ministry.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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e Prepare and maintain vote ledger classifying the object for the money receipts by the Ministry as
government revenue and the expenditures incurred in the Ministerial functions.

e Prepare monthly accounts on daily income received and expenditures incurred by the Ministry and
submit the details of those accounts to the Treasury.

e Preparation of Appropriation Account representing all the transactions of the Ministry annually and
submitting the same to the Auditor General.

Internal Audit Division

e Preparation and execution of the Audit Plan of the Ministry as per the instruction of the Management
Audit Department.

e Carrying out special inquiries and investigations as per the instruction of the Secretary to the Ministry.

e Coordinating the activities of the internal audit divisions of the institutions under the purview of the
ministry.

e Conducting Audit and Management Committee Meetings.

1.6 Institutions under the Purview of the Ministry

Ceylon Electricity Board

Ceylon Electricity Board was Established by Act No.17 of 1969. It is empowered to generate electricity,
transmit it and distribute to all categories of consumers. Further, it has been vested with the power to collect
revenue as per the tariff approved by the Public Utilities Commission of Sri Lanka (PUCSL).

Lanka Electricity Company (Private) Limited

Lanka Electricity Company (Private) Limited has been established to distribute electricity in the authorized
areas spanning in Coastline from the Western Province to the Southern Province. LECO is a subsidiary of CEB
with shareholding of 54.84%, and with minority shareholding of the Treasury 43.56%, Urban Development
Authority 0.79% and Local Authorities 0.81%.

Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority

The Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority was established on 01st October 2007 as per the provisions of Sri
Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority Act No.35 of 2007, with the expectation of identifying Renewable Energy
sources that are necessary to fulfill energy needs in an effective, efficient and environmental friendly manner
while providing a broad contribution to establish, promote and enhance the efficiency of Sustainable Energy
sector.

Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Regulatory Council

Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Regulatory Council was established on the 1st of January 2015 under the Sri Lanka
Atomic Energy Act No. 40 of 2014, and it carries out the regulation of nuclear and radiological technical
services.

Sri Lanka Atomic Energy Board

Sri Lanka Atomic Board (SLAEB) is the Government’s premier Nuclear Science and Technology Organization
which is operated under the Ministry of Power and Energy. The mandate of the SLAEB flows from the powers
vested by the Atomic Energy Act No. 40 of 2014- for the promotion and encouragement of the use of Nuclear
Science and Technology for national development purposes.

Lanka Coal Company (Private) Limited

Lanka Coal Company (Private) Limited is a sole subsidiary of CEB with a shareholding of 60%, with 20% minority
shareholding by the Treasury, 10% by Ceylon Shipping Corporation and 10% by Sri Lanka Ports Authority. The
company imports Coal for the Norochcholai Coal Power Plant.

-11- Ministry of Power and Energy
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Sri Lanka Energies (Private) Limited

Sri Lanka Energies (Private) Limited was established in 2012 as a sole subsidiary of the Ceylon Electricity Board
with the aim of constructing, operating and maintaining Renewable Energy projects in Sri Lanka’s energy
sector.

LTL Holdings (Private) Limited

LTL Holdings (Private) Limited is a subsidiary of CEB with a shareholding of 63%, with a minority shareholding
of its employees (37%), and implementing power generation projects both locally and internationally, as well
as manufacturing electrical transformers, are its primary businesses.

Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

The Ceylon Petroleum Corporation was established under the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation Act No. 28 of
1961 and it is responsible for importation, refining and selling of Petroleum.

Ceylon Petroleum Storage Terminals Limited

The Ceylon Petroleum Storage Terminals Limited is a company incorporated under the Companies Act No. 17
of 1982. The company was incorporated through shareholding of Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and Lanka
Indian Oil Company. It carries out fuel distribution to filling stations and also maintains petroleum storage.

Petroleum Development Authority of Sri Lanka

The Petroleum Development Authority of Sri Lanka in Cooperated under Petroleum Resources Act No. 21
of 2021 and it is the authorized body for exploration and development of the resources associated with
petroleum.

Trinco Petroleum Terminal Limited

The company has been Established under the Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and its main responsibility is the
development activities of the petroleum storing in Tricomalee.

1.7 Challenges faced and the Actions taken by the Ministry of Power and Energy to
overcome them

Challenges Action taken Outcomes

e [ntroduced the institutional

reforms. e Confirmed market competition of
e Financial instability and losses e Introduced the new Electricity Act. the electricity sector.
of the Ceylon Electricity Board. | e Establishment of Power Sector e Established customer oriented service.
Reforms Secreatariat. e Increased revenue

e Revision of the Electricity Bill

e Provision of necessary funds

e Failure to supply coal & fossil ”
fuels for electricity generation through the banking system. e Uninterrupted power suppl
e Establishment of efficient pledp PRl

on time.
procurement process.
e Encouraging Non-Conventional
. . e Increased share of renewable
o Inability to meet expected Renewable Power Generation . . .
. . electricity power generation capacity
hydro power generation Projects. . . )
. in the electricity power generation
targets. e Encouragement to increase the

mix.

private sector investments.
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e Lack of allocations for the long-
term generation, transmission
and distribution efficiency
improvement plans.

Arrange foreign loan assistance and
foreign direct investment.

Actions taken to entering into the
regional power market through
cross border transmission
interconnections.

Studying alternative energy sources
like nuclear power.

e Confirmed electricity supply to meet
the future electricity demand

e Unnecessary costs incurred by
inefficient methods.

Issuing of online and SMS based
electricity bills.( e bills)
Introduction of Smart Meters.

e Customer satisfaction and
convenience.

e Reduction in expenditure

Challenge

Actions taken

Results

e Financial instability, increase in
debt burden, and losses of
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

e Liquidity crisis faced by Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation

Introduction of a cost reflective
pricing mechanism

Timely revision of fuel prices as per
fuel price formula

Transfer Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation loans designated in
foreign exchange to the General
Treasury

e Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
became as a profitable entity by fuel
sales

e QOvercome the liquidity issue faced by
the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

e Ease of debt burden for Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation through
declining debt

e Difficulty in providing foreign
exchange for fuel imports and
not being able to open letters
of credit

e Failure to make timely
payments to fuel suppliers

Provision of foreign exchange
facilities for the import of fuel
through the Central Bank of Sri
Lanka

Obtaining funds under the Indian
Line of Credit line for fuel imports
Introduction of new payment
methods for making payments to
fuel suppliers

e Continuous streamlining of the fuel
supply process

e Ships were able to berth as soon as
they enter the port, and there were
no demurrage charges.

e Reduce financial pressure on Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation as payments
have to be made according to the
quantity of petroleum used.

local

e Adequate buffer stocks in

terminals

e Facing a domestic fuel crisis due
to running out of fuel stocks in
the country and failure to meet
domestic demand

Ensuring a weekly fuel quota for
every vehicle by introducing the
National Fuel Pass

Introduction of the Pre-Paid Tourist
Fuel Pass for tourisum industry
Providing fuel for agriculture and
fisheries through designated fuel
stations

Provide total fuel requirements for
public transport busess through
the National Fuel Pass

e Systematic distribution of limited fuel
stocks of CPSTL

e Providing fuel for essential services
without a shortage

e Able to control fuel demand side
management

e Reluctance of investors to
invest in the petroleum sector

Establish new business models
capable of importing, distributing,
and selling petroleum products
Enact laws to enable investors to
access the domestic market..

e Entry of investors into the domestic
market for the importation,
distribution, and sale of petroleum
products
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1.8 Details of the Foreign Funded Projects

Lending Estimated Physical
Name of the Project Activities FriG cost Project Period e
(Rs. Mn.)
01 Generation Projects
11 Moragolla.Hydro Construction of 31 MW . ADB 19,288 2014 -2024 64%
Power Project Moragolla Hydropower Project
1.2 120 MW Uma Oya Hydro 120 MW Uma Oya Hydropower I[Z:agll USI?_ 2010 - 2024 99%
Power Plant Plant 530 Million
Funds
02 | Green Power Development and Energy Efficiency Improvement Investment Program- Tranche 02
Lot B - New Polpitiya - Dec. 2017 -
5.1 | Hambantota 220 kv Hambantota 220 kV, 150 km ADB 6,014.19 | 18 March 100%
Development (P1) . )
transmission line 2023
Lot B2 A: Padukka - Horana Lot B2 A: Construction of Aoril 2020- 31
2.2 | 132kV, 25 km Transmission | Padukka - Horana 132 kV, 25 km ADB 599.71 | “P" 51.15%
- . . March 2024
Line transmission line
Package -03 Lot Al
Construction of Construction of
Colombo B GSS Colombo B GSS
Single In & Out Connection Single In & Out Connection from October 2019
2.3 | from Colombo C - Colombo C - Kolonnawa AFD 1,260.80 - 100%
Kolonnawa 132 kV 800 mm? | 132 kV 800 mm? Cable October 2023
Cable Augmentation at Augmentation at Colombo C and
Colombo C and Kolonnawa Kolonnawa Grid Substations
Grid Substations
Sub Lot - Al
Augmentation of Kotugoda Grid
Substation Augmentation of
Package - 03 Lot - A2- KoIonnéwa Stanley Grid
Kotugoda, Kolonnawa, Substation .
Padukka. Horana. Dehiwala Augmentation of Padukka October 2018
24 / . Switching Station Augmentation ADB 2,308.42 - 100%
and Madampe GSS A .
Augmentation project of Hprana th’ld SubstaFlon January 2023
Dehiwala Grid Substation
Sub Lot - 2
Augmentation of Dehiwala Grid
Substation and Augmentation of
Madampe Grid Substation
Package 8/Lot B: Augmentation
of Ambalangoda 132/33 Kv GSS
Project
25 ég;b:Lag“rﬁZifai;dnPparr;?:l: Augmentation of Pannala 132/33 ADB 1,739.59 | 2022-2024 100%
kV GSS and supply of 2 spare
Transformers of 132/33 kV
31.5 MVA
Construction of 220 kV Engeneering, procurement, Civil
2.6 | Switching Station at Works & Electrical installation ADB 2,918.7 2020-2024 88%
Kerawalapitiya works February
pity:
- Lot Al: Installl’fzt-lon of 100 MVAR 2019-2023
Package 7: Supporting BSC at P.ann|p|t|ya Grid 1103.50 September 78.1%
57 | Electricity Supply Reliability Substation ADB
Improvement Project Lot A2: Installation of +100/-50
Static Var System (SVS) at 1,687.02 2020-2024 98.6%
Biyagama Grid Substation
Primary Substations:
Construction of 01 new PSS and
2.8 Augmentation of 02 exisiting PSS ADB 4,939 2017-2024 92%
33Kv Gantries : Construction of
new kV Gantries
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Lending Estimated Physical
Name of the Project Activities R e cost Project Period D
(Rs. Mn.)
33 Kv Distribution Tower 33 Kv Lynx D/C , 4Cct Tower Lines
Lines and Gantry : Construction of 05 new 33 kV
(GPDEEIP) 1) : .
tower Lines
03 | Supporting Electricity Supply Reliability Improvement Project 04 and 05
ADB
Supporting Electricity Construction of 300 km long 33 kV +
3.1 | Supply Reliability tower lines and 13 no. of 33 kV GOsL 6,781.59 | 2019-2024 55.15%
Improvement Project switching gantries + March
Package 4: CEB
04 | Habarana-Veyangoda 220kV Transmission Line
Lot A: Construction of New
Habarana 220/132/33 kV 6,958 99.8%
Switching Station
2018
Lot B: Construction of 220 kV September -
4.1 | Habarana-Veyangoda 220 double circuit three phase JICA 2023 August
kV Transmission Line transmission line of twin low loss 99.9%
conductors (2 x LL-TACSR) New 17,770
Habarana Substation to
Veyangoda Substation 146 km of
route length
05 | National Transmission and Distribution Network Development and Efficiency Improvement Project
Package 1 — Transmission Lines.
Package 1 — Transmission (Construction of 400 kV,220
Lines kV,and 132 kV Transmission
Lines) 70.50%
Package: 2~ Grid Package 2 — Grid Substations
Substations
60.34%
Package 3-Transmission Lines-
o Construction of 220/132 Kv
Package 3 —Transmission | p3n¢mission Lines from New JicA 37,284 |  2018-2023
5.1 | Lines Polpitiya to Kothmale SWS
(24km) 220 kV, and 132 kV 58.74%
Transmission Lines
Package 4 — Distribution Package 4 — Distribution Lines. -
Lines Construction of 11 kV
Underground System in
41.60%

Dehiwala, Mt. Lavinia and
Battaramulla
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Chaprer [17]
Progress and Future Outlook

2.1 Performance of the Power Sector in the year 2023
2.1.1 Electricity Demand and Consumer Growth

By the end of 2023, the total number of electricity consumers was recorded as 7,596,894, with 7,000,635
belonging to the Ceylon Electricity Board and 596,259 belonging to the Lanka Electricity Company Private
Limited.

The table given below shows the number of customers based on sectors.

Table 2.1.1
No. of consumer based on sectors

Sector No. of consumer
1 Domestic 6,509,953
2 Religious places 46,207
3 Industries 72,892
4 General Purposes 948,370
5 Hotels 657
6 Government Institutions 9,727
7 Agricultura Purposes 3,296
8 Street Lighting 5,792

Total 7,596,894

Source - Annual reports 2023 of CEB, LECO

The maximum night time usage was observed on the date 29-03-2023 at a time when the electricity demand
was reported as 2,414.8 MW, marking a decrease of 293 MW when compared with the last year. The maximum
daytime demand was recorded as 2,166 MW with a decrease of 192 MW from the value it indicated last year
and on 22-08-2023, the peak electricity demand has been recorded. Reporting an electricity demand of 928.4
MW, the lowest demand of the system was recorded on 30-09-2023, which reflected a 95.5 MW increase
compared to the previous year.

The average cost per unit of electricity was Rs. 40.92 per kWh for the year 2023, compared to Rs.36.15 per
kWh of value existed previous year, with Rs. 4.77 per kWh or 13% of increase in the cost. Furthermore, the
total consumption of electricity was decreased by 2.5% from 15,942 GWh in 2022 to 15,588 GWh in 2023. In
2022, the average selling price was Rs. 21.24 per kWh, which grew in to Rs.42.86 kWh in 2023 follwing the
tariffs revision effected. Accordingly, for the first time in recent past, CEB sold electricity at a higher price than
the cost at the selling point.
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2.1.2 Electricity Generation

The total annual electricity generation for 2023 was 15,588 GWh (Net), representing a 2.5% reduction from
Previous year’s value of 15,942 GWh. 26% of total energy generation in 2023 was supplied by the Independent

Power Producers, which accounted for the Previous year at 23%.

The table given below shows the percentages of contribution made by each source to the net electricity
generation of 2023 which was 15,588 GWh in value.

Table 2.1.2
Electricity Generation-2023

Source Percentage
1 | Hydro Power (CEB) 29.35%
2 | Mini Hydro Power (IPP) 8.91%
3 | Wind (CEB) 2.51%
4 | Wind (IPP) 2.73%
5 | Rooftop Solar Panels 4.05%
6 | Ground Mounted Solar Panels 1.45%
7 | Thermal (CEB) 12.65%
8 | Thermal (IPP) 7.48%
9 | Coal (CEB) 29.80%
10 | Non-conventional Other RE 1.07%
Total 100%
Source - Annual reports 2023 of CEB, LECO & SEA
Figure -2.1.1
Electricity Generation-2023
Thermal (IPP) Wind (CEB)
Mini Hydro (IPP) 7% '"3%
" gl
Wind (IPP)
3%
Solor Rooftop Coal (CEB)
2% 30%
Solor (GC)

1%

NCRE Other =

1%

Thermal (CEB)
13%

Hydro (CEB) _/

29%

Source - Annual Report -2023- CEB
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2.1.3 Installed Capacity of the National Grid

The total installed capacity was 5,192 MW, out of which 4,381 MW was added to the system by the Ceylon
Electricity Board in the year 2023. Out of this, 1,413 MW was contributed by hydro- power plants, 801 MW
by oil-powered thermal power plants, 900 MW by the coal-fired power plant and 104 MW from the Mannar
wind power plant and those were operated by the CEB.

The national power system is composed of 60% of renewable energy sources and 40% fossil fuels. Coal makes
up 43% out of the fossil fuel share, while petroleum supplies the remaining 57%. The main renewable energy
source in the capacity mix was supplied by the major hydro-power plants which reads as 27% of the total
installed capacity. Other renewable energy sources, which make up 33% of the total installed capacity mix,
include wind, solar (both ground-mounted and rooftop), mini-hydro power, biomass, and municipal solid
waste are also used in generation of electricity.

Table 2.1.3
Installed Electricity Capacity based on source of generation

TSRS Installed Capacity No. Power
(MW) Plants

1 Petroleum oil (CEB) 801 10
2 Thermal Petroleum oil (IPP) 387 3
3 Coal 900 1
4 Major Hydro Power 1,413 18
5 Mini Hydro Power 419 212
6 Renewable Wind 267 20
7 Energy Ground Mounted Solar Panels 139 86
8 Rooftop Solar Panels 812 -
9 Other 54 14

Total 5,192 364

Source - Detailed Electricity Generation Statistics CEB- 2023

2.1.4 Hydro Power Generation Expansion Projects

Capacity and reliability enhancement projects were carried out at Kotmale, Ukuwela, Thambapawani Wind,
Victoria, Randenigala and Lakvijaya Power Stations to improve their operating conditions, efficiency, capacities,
output, and operational lifespan.

Hydro power generation expansion projects include the Broadlands, Moragolla and Uma Oya Hydro Power
Projects are continued in the year 2023. The 35 MW Broadlands Hydro Power Plant is now in operation and
203 GWh of energy has been generated end of December 2023. The status of the other two hydro power
development projects as of the end of December 2023 is given below.
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Table 2.1.4
Hydro Power Generation Expansion Projects

No. Hydro Power Project C?I&av‘;;y Progress
1 Moragolla Hydro Power o Physical Progress - 64%
Project ’ Expected to be completed by December 2024.
Physical Progress - 99%
2 Um'a Oya Hydro Power 120 Construction Work is expected to complete by the fisrt
Project
quarter of 2024.

Source - Annual Report-2023 - CEB

2.1.5 Thermal Power Generation Projects

The second combined cycle power plant at the Kelanithissa power plant was comissioned during the year,
adding 157 MW of energy capacity to the power systeam.

The following thermal power generation projects are currently in progress:

Table 2.1.5
Thermal Power Generation Expansion Projects

Project Status

1 | First 350 MW Natural Gas fired e Power Purchase Agrement (PPA) signed on 2021-07-19.
Combined Cycle Power e Overall physical progress - 76%
Plant - Kerawalapitiya e Combined Cycle Operation - expected in December 2024.

2 | Second 350 MW LNG Combined e Request for Proposal (RFP) closed on 2021-12-15.
Cycle Power Plant- e Letter of Intent issued on 2023-12-12.
Kerawalapitiya e SCAPC and TEC appointed for Negotiations with Lakdhanavi

Source - Progress Report 2023-CEB

2.1.6 Improving Access to Non- Conventional Renewable Energy (NCRE)

The Ministry has prioritized the promotion of Non-Conventional Renewable Energy resources enhancement
works.

The progress of the NCRE developments which are ongoing is given below.
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E ted Expected date
Name of project xpec .e Physical Progress at 2023-12-31 P A
Capacity of completion
1 1 MW x 35 Nos Solar Power Project 35 MW e Commissioned - 1 MWx35 Plants Completed
5 150 MW Solar Power Project in (1- 10) 147 MW e 2 MW plant commissioned. 2MW plant
MW capacities e 145 MW (22 projects) cancelled completed
e 15 MW plant (Mannar) commissioned
Wind _P-ower Project in (1-10) MW 35 MW 10 MW plant (Trincomalee) — Cancelled 2024
3 capacities e 2x 5 MW (Madampe) Performance
bonds to be forfeited
e Contract awarded in August 2023
4 Syambalanduwa Solar Power Project 100 MW e Agreement signing scheduled before 2025
31-01-2024
. Project proponent has submitted the
250 MW M h Il Wind P
. TN PineEs ind rower 250 MW proposal and CANC negotiating the 2026
5 Project . . .
financial proposal with them.
e 1 MW x 41 Plants -commissioned
e 1 MW x 04 -Plants Under construction
6 1 MW x68 Nos Solar Power Project 68 MW e 1 MWxO05 Plants - Force Majeure 2024
claimed
e 1 MWx18 Plants-Cancelled
7 10 MW Polonnaruwa Solar Plant 10 MW PPA signed and under construction 2024
3 30 MW Ground mounted/floating Solar 5 MW e Letters of award issued Nawalapitiya 2025
PV Power Plants tender (1-5 MW) (3 MW), Beliatta (2 MW), LOI's signed
i e Tender (1-5 MW
g |30MW Ground mounted/floating Solar 25 MW . ( : ) 2026
PV Power Plants tender e Pending cabinet approval to award
20 MW On-shore Wind Power Plants e Letters of award issued to 5 MWx04
10 (2.5-10 MW) 20 MW projects, all LOI's signed 2026
11 40 MW Ground mounted / floating Solar 40 MW o Cabln.et approval to award r.ecelved, 2025
PV Power Plants pending PUCSL approval to issue awards
12 70 MW Ground mounted Solar PV 51 MW e Letters of award issued for 12 projects, )
Power Plants (1-5 MW) LOI's of 9 projects signed
. . ® Project proponent has submitted the
100 MW Oddamawadi Batticaloa Solar L
13 . 100 MW proposal and CANC negotiating the 2026
PV Power Project X i K
financial proposal with them.
* Project proponent has submitted the
14 | 234 MW Pooneryn Wind Power Project 234 MW proposal and CANC negotiating the 2026
financial proposal with them.
e RFP has been issued to the project
15 | 50 MW Sampoor Solar PV Power Project 50 MW proponent and they are in the process of 2026
preparing the proposal'
e Discussion is ongoing regarding the
. . i f the electrical connection
60 MW Solar PV Power Project in preparation o
16 | Lombantota ! 60 MW arrangement for the power plant that 2024/2025
will  connect to the proposed
Hambantota Solar Collector Substation.
e Discussion is ongoing regarding the
54 MW Wind Power Proiect in preparation of the electrical connection
17 | Hambantota d 54 MW arrangement for the power plant that will 2024/2025
connect to the proposed Hambantota
Solar Collector Substation.
e 4 MW -Commissioned
18 | Project under FIT 672 Mw | ° 86.8 MW -SPPA signed 2024/2025

e 189.3 MW -LOl issued
e 401.7 MW -Pending SPPA & LOI

Source - Annual Report CEB 2023
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Details of Standardized Power Purchase Agreements signed Renewable Energy Projects, which were
commissioned and in operation as at 2023-12-31 are as given below:

Table 2.1.7
Standardized Power Purchase Agreements signed on Renewable Energy Projects

Project Type No. of Projects | Capacity (MW)

1 | Mini Hydro Power 217 422.84
2 | Wind Power 19 163.45
3 Biomass-Agri. & Industrial Waste Power 06 17.18
4 | Biomass — Dendro Power 10 31.51
5 | Solar Power 87 139.38
6 Municipal Solid Waste Power 01 10.00

Total 340 784.36

Source - Annual Report 2023-CEB

2.1.7 Power Transmission Improvements

Throughout the year, 946 new distribution substations were integrated into the system. By the end of the
year, the total route length of 220 kV and 132 kV overhead and underground transmission lines reached 3,403
km.

Ceylon Electricity Board successfully completed the construction of the Pettah grid substation during the year
2023. Consequently, the total grid substation capacity increased to 12,353 MVA, and the total number of grid
substations in the country at the end of the year reached 90.

Work on transmission projects such as Greater Colombo Transmission and Loss Reduction Project, Green
Power Development and Energy Efficiency Improvement Project, National Transmission & Distribution
Network Development and Energy Efficiency Project and Transmission Construction Projects continued during
the year 2023.

The Transmission Division through its System Control Centre dispatches the electricity supplied to the National
Grid by all generation stations by utilizing the 220 kV and 132 kV transmission network.

Development of transmission lines and grid substations in past years are as given below

Table 2.1.8
Development of transmission lines and grid substations
Description Units 2021 2022 2023
1 220 kV Route Length km 829 848 998
2 132 kV Route Length km 2,394 2,405 2,405
3 Grid Substations No. 84 89 90

Source - Annual Report 2023-CEB
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The distribution network consists of 33 kV, 11 kV and 400 kV lines. Distribution infrastructure developments

in the past three years are as given below:

Table 2.1.9

Distribution Infrastructure Development

Description Units 2021 2022 2023
1 33 kV Distribution Lines km 33,295 35,032 44,413
2 11 kV Distribution Lines km 2,449 2,403 2,533
3 33/11 kV Primary Substations No. 129 131 133
4 LV Distribution Lines km 149,624 151,213 153,174
5 No. of LV Distribution Substations No. 35,290 35,926 36,872

Source - Annual Report 2023-CEB

2.1.9 Climate Change Mitigation Activities and Nationally Determined Contributions (NDCs) of the
Power Sector

In order to mitigate climate change, greenhouse gas emissions have to be reduced and accordingly, it has
aimed for zero carbon emissions. Preparation of the Implementation and Monitoring Plan of NDCs related to
the Power Sector was completed. Progress of the implementation of NDCs in the power sector was reported
to the National Steering Committee. The Greenhouse Gas emission reduction against business as usual
scenario has recorded 25%. The estimated Greenhouse Gas emission reduction (5% unconditionally and 20%
conditionally) over the period of 2021-2030 is equivalent to 9,819,000 MT unconditionally and 39,274,000
MT conditionally (total emission reduction is 49,093,000 MT). In order to meet these targets, the Renewable
Energy power generation needs to be increased.

2.1.10 Research and Development Activities

United States Agency for International Development (USAID) has committed to provide technical assistance
amounting USD 4.23 million to CEB, USD 1.9 million to LECO and USD 3.6 million to SLSEA under their grant
financing and the renowned name of the project is Sri Lanka Energy Programme. Under this, the technical
assistance to conduct selected Research and Development activities is expected to be provided and the
Steering Committee meeting of this project was held in 2023.

2.1.11 Institutional Reforms for Power Sector

A Cabinet Sub-Committee was appointed with the intention of carrying out institutional reforms for the
power sector and the report of that committee has been already submitted. When preparing the report,
the committee obtained the opinions of the Honorable Members of Parliament, the Ministers who were
previously in charge of Ministry of Power, regulatory bodies and Public Utilities Commission, Ceylon Electricity
Board and Lanka Electricity Company (Private) Limited and the management of utility companies, Sri Lanka
Institute of Engineering and Trade Unions.

. As per the approval given by the Cabinet of Ministers, the Power Sector Reforms Secretariat
(PSRS) which is made up of local and international experts to implement institutional reforms in

the power sector, was established under the supervision of the Ministry of Power and Energy.
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. Before being published in the Gazette, the proposed New Electricity Bill has already been referred
to the Cabinet of Ministers for approval.

2.1.12 Electricity Tariff Revision -2023

The General Policy Guidelines on the Electricity Industry was issued by the Government of Sri Lanka through
letter No. MOPE/SEC/COM/2023 of the Ministry of Power and Energy dated 12-01-2023, and accordingly, in
order to create a setting devoid of scheduled power outages and operations relying on government subsidies,
the electricity tariffs revisions should be held semi-annually, which is, on the first day of January and July of
each year.

. Accordingly, on 05-01-2023, 15-05-2023 and 17-10-2023, the Ceylon Electricity Board submitted
three proposals for electricity tariffs revision and the tariff revisions were approved by the Public
Utilitles Commission of Sri Lanka with effect from 15-02-2023, 01-07-2023 and 20-10-2023
respectively.

. The Ceylon Electricity Board, after a lapse of 10 years, has derived a cost-reflective tariff method
for the tariff revision in first half of 2023, and it enabled uninterrupted electricity supply across
the country throughout the day, providing ways for the economic revival of the country, and it also
benefitted the industries, businesses, general public, investor community, prospective electricity
consumers and also the Ceylon Electricity Board in many ways.

2.1.13 Operational Improvements Achieved with the Modern Technology

. National Energy Forecasting model for solar PV
A National Energy Forecasting model for solar PV systems, aimed at creating a reliable and accurate
energy forecasting system, has been developed. Currently, the testing of the forecasting model for
all ground-mounted solar PV systems in CEB is underway on the CEBAssist platform.

. The Progress of Rooftop Solar Connections
Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority, Ceylon Electricity Board and Lanka Electricity Company
Private Ltd have consistently pursued initiatives to encourage the establishment of small solar
power plants on the rooftops of residences, religious sites, hotels, commercial establishments,
and industries.

Table 2.1.10
The Progress of Rooftop Solar Connections

Net Metering Net Plus Net Accounting Total

1 No. of Solar Customers 10.719 3.041 26.067 39.827

Installed Capacity (MW) 101.21 301.55 249.72 652.48

Source - Annual Report 2023-CEB

. Integration of Rooftop Solar PV Application Processing System into CEBAssist
CEBAssist has recently incorporated a new module, the Rooftop Solar PV Application Processing
System. This addition empowers Distribution Staff to efficiently handle various tasks such as Solar
PV clearance requests, connection applications, internal workflows and field inspection tasks.
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This module has been successfully developed and implemented across all areas, providing a
standardized approach to processing rooftop solar PV applications. All RTSPV applications are managed
through this module, enabling customers to access real-time updates on their application status.

Automated IT Service Desk
The newly developed Automated IT Service Desk software has been launched to CEB internal
customers to enhance the quality of services offered by the IT Branch.

In addition to the above operational developments highlighted in the Annual Report 2022, the
following modules have been developed under CEBAssist solution.

» NCRE Desk module to monitor real-time generation statistics for all NCRE plants. This
module monitors generation statistics through energy meters installed in NCRE plants.

» Daily generation statistics module to collect daily generation, reservoir, fuel status, and
details online from major hydro and thermal generation plants

» Attendance module to manage shift rosters, teams, leave, and attendance of shift staff in
power plants and other units.

» Expenditure tracking module to monitor invoices, pay slips, fund allocation, and cheques
of individual paying units.

» E-bill services via Email & SMS for all ordinary customers to reduce the reliance on printed
bill insurance.

» Smart Meter Head End System (HES) and connected 3500 ordinary customer meters to
HES. This assists CEB in remotely reading meters and issuing e-bills.

2.1.14 International Collaborations

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has been signed between the CEB and the Japan Electric
Power Information Center (JEPIC) on technology transfer with the two organizations after having
the consent of the Department of Attorney General and received the approval from the Cabinet
of Ministers to extend whenever necessary.

Activities related to get the membership of the Energy Centre of South Asian Association of
Regional Cooperation (SAARC) under the guidance of the Foreign Ministry.

The activities have been carried out with the Bay of Bengal Initiative for Multi-Sectoral Technical
and Economic Cooperation (BIMSTEC) under the guidance of the Foreign Ministry.Participated
and activities carried out in the first meeting on Administration Board of the BIMSTEC and the
second assembly of the Electricity Network Inter Connection

Submitted the reviews on electricity distribution, selling and interchange and pricing on policy
document of the BIMSTEC.

South Asia Regional Energy Partnership (SAREP)

As a part of the SAREP program, two events held in Sri Lanka on “Cross Border Power Trade”.
Taking forward the activities of SAREP Task Force-1 (TF-1) on “Coordination of Policies, Legal and
Regulatory Frameworks for Cross Border Electricity Trade", the 11th Meeting was held on 9th
October 2023 followed by the three-day workshop. The key objective of TF-1 is harmonization
of policy, legal and regulatory issues for fair allocation of costs and risks through conducive
policies, legal and regulatory instruments, in order to create the enabling systemic conditions for
a sustainable market for implementation and expansion of CBET projects. Representatives from
Bangladesh, Nepal, Bhutan, India and Sri Lanka Particited in Task Force meeting and workshops.
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2.1.15 Future Plans and Programmes for 2024

a) Project and programmes to be implemented in 2024

Table 2.1.11

Funds allocated by the Budget Estimate-2024

2024 (Rs.Mn)
. Allocation
SUb | object Iteam Decription 11/12 13 17 Total
Project . . .
(Finance | (Finance | (Finance
Code) Code) Code)
Accounting for the Foreign Disbursements _ _
1 032 2506 of CEB Loan (ADB/JICA) (12) 30,000 30,000
The Project for Capacity Development on
) 034 2401 the' Pgwer Sector Mas.ter Plan - staff _ 20 ) 27
Training Implementation Programme
(JICA Grant ) — Reform Office
3 035 2103 Battery Energy Storage System under ) 2,900 339 3,239
Grant of Korean Government
Providing Rooftop Solar Power Facility
4 036 2202 In§tallat|on for Governme.nt' Building low _ 500 100 600
—income Households, Religious places
and RO Plants (GOSL/INDIA) (12) — SEA
Construction of Hybrid Renewable Energy
System in Small Islands —
> 037 2103 Delft,Analativu,Nainativu, Sri Lanka - 3,465 135 S0
(India)
Sri Lanka Energy Programme
6 038 2401 -USASID -AP - 1,200 10 1,210
Implementation of 1MW Floating Solar
7 039 2103 | Projects at Chandrika Wewa & Kiri —Ibban _ 1,002 85 1,087
Wewa (Korea Grant)
Energy Efficiency Centralized Air
4 21 - 2 122
8 040 03 Conditioning System (ADB) -SEA 96 6
Appiliance Energy Labeling Programme B
9 041 2103 Air Conditioning Testing Lab -SEA 206 12 218
Expanding the Capacities & Capabilities of
10 042 2103 the SLAEB - 20 05 25
11| 043 2103 | Donation fro IAEA - 102 07 109
12 001 2201 Sri Lz.a\n!<a S.ustfmlnable Energy Authority - 50 ) ) 50
Public institution
13 002 2201 'Srl L'anlfa Atomic Energy Board - Public 20 ) ) 20
institution
14 004 2201 Sri Lan.ka Ator.nlt.: En.erg\./ Regulatory 02 ) _ 02
Council - Public institution
Petroleum Sector Development Frame
151 007 2507 Work Research & Development - Training 0.5 ) ) 0.5
30,072.5 9,511 721 | 40,304.5
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b) Expansion of Generation Capacity
The Long-Term Generation Expansion Plan 2023-2042 was submitted to the PUCSL for approval on
2022-09-14, and PUCSL approval was granted on 2023-02-10. Accordingly, the implementation of new
generation projects have been progressing as envisaged in the CEB’s Long-Term Generation Expansion
Plan (2023-2042).

As per the CEB Long-Term Generation Expansion Plan (2023-2042), the following power plants are
scheduled to be added to the power system from the year 2024 up to the year 2026.

Table 2.1.12
Capacities to be added to the power system from 2024 to 2026 as per the Long Term
Generation Expansion Plan (2023-2042)

Power Plant Technology C?&a‘:ll)ty
01 Renewable (Major Hydro, Mini Hydro, Wind, Solar, Dendro & Biomass) 2,199
02 | standalone Battery Energy Storage 100
03 Grid Connected Fully Facilitated Solar (With Battery Energy Storage) 200
04 | Natural Gas & Natural Gas Combined Cycle Power Plant 665
05 | New Gas Turbines 130
Total 3,294

Source - Performance Report 2023-CEB

2.2 Performance of the Energy Sector in the year 2023

Basic needs of people is increasing day by day and petroleum that is essential to fulfill those needs can be
recognized as a prime factor. Therefore, the Energy section under the Ministry of Power and Energy has
completed major tasks in 2023 by paying more attention to the policy programs and projects which are
needed to enhance the efficiency and productivity of the petroleum industry.

2.2.1 Evolution of the Organizational Structure of the Petroleum Industry of Sri Lanka

The Ceylon Petroleum Corporation which was established by Act No. 28 of June 1961 started to handle
all downstream activities such as importing, exporting, storing, refining, producing, blending, distributing,
transporting, wholesaling and retailing of petroleum products and CPC became the sole agency of the
petroleum Industry in Sri Lanka. After mid 1990 the operation of the petroleum Industry has undergone some
structural changes like liberalization due to various policy decisions taken by the successive governments. As
a result, the private sector was permitted enter the Sri Lanka’s petroleum Industry in various ways such as
imports, distribution and selling of selected petroleum products.

The establishment of Ceylon Petroleum Storage Terminals Limited (CPSTL) in 2003 to handle the activities
of storage and distribution of petroleum products is another significant change of liberalization. CPSTL was
established under the Companies Act in order to introduce a Common User Facility for storing the petroleum
products handled by both government and private sectors and currently functions as the entity which supplies
common facilities to all the fuel supplying entities.

To explore and develop petroleum in Sri Lanka and to formalize them the provisions were provided by the

Petroleum Resources Act No 26 of 2003 and a Petroleum Resources Development Committee was established
to implement the provisions of the act. Later on, the prevailed Petroleum Resources Development Committee
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was abolished by the Petroleum Resources Act No. 21 of 2021 and established the Petroleum Development
Authority and all the regulatory functions of the upstream petroleum Industry were vested to this authority.
The government faced more difficulties in fulfilling the domestic demand for fuel amidst the scarcity of foreign
exchange in 2022 and 2023 as unprecedented in the country. In this year, with the liquidity scarcity in the local
foreign exchange market, the financial status of the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation was poor and therefore,
the fuel procurement process was highly challenged and it results for a fuel crisis that led to social unrest in
the country. Considering the necessity of imports of fuel to certify the continuation of economic activities,
the petroleum market was further liberalized in 2023 by issuing the licenses to three competitive agents to
import, sell and distribute petroleum products based on long-term agreements. At present, the process of
importing and distributing fuel is carried out by five (05) competing entities.

2.2.2 Strategic Measures Taken to Ensure a Continuous Fuel Supply

Due to the difficulty of providing foreign exchange to import fuel amidst the economic crisis faced by the
country, a scarcity of fuel was created within the country in 2023. In this situation, to match the limited
amount of foreign exchange in the country, the following strategic measures were taken together with the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation to import fuel.

. CPC has introduced the procurement of petroleum product under the supply / storage modality
mechanism. These mechanism allow for partial payment based on quantity drawn depending
consumption in the country, subjected settle total amount within 30 days from the date of
completion of discharging.

. Step have been taken to settle payments for petroleum products in the local currency (NRR/
ESCROW) through negotiation with reputable suppliers.

. Unsolicited proposals also considered by CPC for the procurement of petroleum products,
including finish products and crude oil with the approval of Cabinet of Ministers.

. Lift the terms and conditions in the petroleum products procurement process of CPC with the
approval of Cabinet of Ministers.

. Long-term contracts have been entered with suppliers for both refined products and crude oil.
This step is taken to ensure energy security in the country and to the guarantee the uninterrupted
availability of crude oil for the smooth operation of the oil refinery.

In order to fulfill the local petroleum demand, Ceylon Petroleum Corporation imported refined petroleum
products and crude oil by utilizing the above strategic measures. In 2023, CPC imported 51 refined cargoes
and 17 crude oil cargoes by individual tenders, term tenders and unsolicited proposals, and the details of the
imported cargoes are shown by the Table 2.2.1.
Table 2.2.1
Summary of Imported Cargoes - 2023
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Type of Contract Number of Imported Cargoes
:Z‘::‘z‘t’s Crude Oil
Individual Tenders 22 11
Term Tenders 24 6
Unsolicited proposals 5 -
Total 51 17

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
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2.2.3 Import and Refining of Crude Oil

The oil refinery at Sapugaskanda was established in 1969 with a refining capacity of 38,000 barrels per day.
Thereafter, refinery has undergone several modifications in a manner to increase the capacity up to 50,000
crude oil barrels per day. At present, the total production of the refinery contributes to about 1/3 of total
requirement of petroleum products in the country per annum. Petrol, Auto Diesel, Super Diesel, Furnace Qil,
Kerosene, LPG, Jet A-1, Bitumen, Chemical Naphtha and Solvent are the finished products that come from
the refinery.

The Table 2.2.2 shows the details of crude oil imported during the period from 2018 to 2023 and Table 2.2.3
shows the quantity of petroleum products produced by the refinery during that time period.

Table 2.2.2
Imports of Crude Qil (2018 - 2023)
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Year Quantity Import value
(MT) (Rs. Mn)

2018 1,763,000 160,933
2019 1,843,000 172,542
2020 1,666,000 98,277
2021 1,130,000 101,306
2022 743,000 180,019
2023 1,666,000 364,098

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Compared to the previous years, it’s observed that there’s a reduction in the quantity of imported crude
oil in 2022 this amount has reduced up to 743,000 MT by 34.2% relative to the year 2021. Then prevailed
Covid-19 pandemic situation and economic crisis of the country affected the decrease the quantity of crude
oil imports. However, in 2023 1,666,000 MT of crude oil was imported again and it can be indicated as an
increment by 124% relative to the year 2022.

Table 2.2.3

Domestically Refined Petroleum Products (2018 — 2023)
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Quantity (MT)

Product 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Petrol 165,425 185,915 164,416 124,092 38,666 171,186
Auto Diesel 567,577 624,462 537,645 370,594 128,165 505,675
Furnace oil 423,197 468,843 465,419 359,021 194,197 482,126
Kerosene 35,195 8,369 109,165 98,284 25,289 49,484
Naphtha 140,619 162,019 156,953 106,956 30,835 129,058
Bitumen 12,839 17,103 13,561 6,879 - -
LPG 22,084 26,988 25,251 16,650 5,687 23,300
JetA1 237,270 258,986 157,279 130,572 57,346 233,652
SBP 1,59 1,660 897 3,037 2,690 1,524

Total 1,605,802 | 1,754,345 | 1,630,586 | 1,216,085 482,875 1,596,505

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
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In 2023, the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation refined 1,596,505 MT of petroleum products by utilizing 1,677,033
MT of crude oil and this amount is 46% of the total refined petroleum products of the Ceylon Petroleum
Corporation. Table 2.2.4 shows the imports of refined petroleum and the amount of domestically refined

petroleum products.

Table 2.2.4

Details of Imported Refined Products and Refinery Production 2023
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

9
Product 'ﬁ::i:::::;og\:;t)s sapRuegf?:::;da Total (MT) * ;:fI;:Z:"y
Production (MT) Production
Auto Diesel 695,448.20 505,675 1,201,123.20 42%
Super Diesel 23,594.73 - 23,594.73 -
Petrol 92 Octane 793,879.37 171,186 965,065.37 17%
Petrol 95 Octane 28,367.83 - 28,367.83 -
Kerosene - 49,484 49,484.00 100%
Jet Al 168,415.18 233,652 402,067.18 58%
Naphtha 16,218.51 129,058 145,276.51 88%
LPG - 23,800 23,800.00 100%
SBP - 1,524 1,524.00 100%
Fuel Oil 800 Super - 379,015 379,015.00 100%
Fuel Oil 1500 - 103,111 103,111.00 100%
Ezil(f.g;j\g.s.) 124,420.52 i 124,420.52 -
Total 1,850,344.34 1,596,505 3,446,849.34 46%

2.2.4 Import of Refined Petroleum Products

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Import of refined petroleum products in Sri Lanka was mainly done by Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and
Lanka Indian Oil Company up to 2022. Later on, due to liberalization of the petroleum market, 03 other
competitive entities entered the country’s market and M/S Sinopec Energy Lanka (Private) Limited started to
import and supply petroleum products in 2023. The other two entities will import and supply fuel in 2024.

Table 2.2.5

Details of the Refined Petroleum Product Imports
(2021 - 2023)

Product Quantity (MT.000)
Year 2021 2022 2023
Entity CPC LIOC CPC LIoC CPC LIOoC Sinopec*
Auto Diesel
1,254 216 1,267 213 695 240 90
Super Diesel 68 128 24 4
Petrol — 92 Octane 893 838 794 91
164 171 213
Petrol — 95 Octane
103 46 28 5.6
Jet A-1 178 269 - 168 - -
Low Sulphur Fuel Oil (180 CST) 245 - 124 - 124 - -
High Sulphur Fuel Oil (180 CST) 31 - - - - -
Naphtha - - - 16 - -
Total 2,772 380 2,722 384 1,849 453 190.6

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, Lanka Indian Oil Company, Sinopec Energy Lanka (Private) Limited
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Note * The details of the petroleum product sale of Sinopec Energy Lanka Private Limited are relevant to the
time period from August 2023 to 31.12.2023.

2.2.5 Sale of Petroleum Products

Operation of all the national economic sectors transport, electricity supply, industry, fisheries etc resists on
the energy supply and so it’s essential to maintain a supply that fulfils the demand for the smooth functioning
of these sectors. Accordingly, the sale of refined petroleum products from 2021 to 2023 by each fuel supplier
is shown by the Table 2.2.6.

When considering the total fuel sale, the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation has done a maximum sale of 93%
in 2021, 89% in 2022, 84% in 2023. However, it’s obvious that the contribution of the annual fuel sale of the
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation gradually decreases. Further the Sinopec access the fuel distribution market
in 2023.

Table 2.2.6
Sale of Petroleum Products
2021-2023
Total Sales (MT)
Riedust 2021 2022 2023
Entity CPC Lioc CPC Lioc CPC LloCc | Sinopec
(L)ac':';:etm' =92 1,102,551.7 964,844.219 982,939.25 84,003
ke Petrol — 95 148,239 166,907 220,123
102,809.5 55,697.245 29,042.01 2,429
Octane
Lanka Auto Diesel 1,706,041.8 1,475,577.154 1,257,303.75 87,923
: 177,737 223,504 242,996
Lanka Super Diesel 65,721.5 724,74.383 29,809.39 2,820
Lanka Kerosene 185,312.6 - 98,367.966 - 82,724.80 - -
Lanka Industrial 2,903.3 ; 5,647.035 - 1,828.13 - -
Kerosene
Lanka Chemical 3334592 | - 32,262.861 | - 120,093.96 | - -
Naphtha
Lanka Fuel Oil 800 99,321.8 - - - 12.51 - -
Lanka Fuel Oil 1500
. 340,198.0 - 198,891.936 - 168,800.54 - -
(High Sulphur)
Lanka Fuel Oil 1500
407,868.4 - 103,379.876 - 237,192.23 - -
(Low Sulphur)
Lanka Fuel Ol - 203,994.2 - 54,978.319 ; 117,198.22 - -
Super
Jet A-1 223,666.3 - 245,796.923 - 377,456.72 - -
Lanka Solvent (SBP) 2,486.5 - 2,701.635 - 1,362.94 - -
LPG 16,707.115 - 5,556.054 - 23,877.74 - -
Lanka AV Gas 109.531 - 83.871 - 120.67 - -
Total 4,793,151.45 | 325,976 | 3,243,785.09 | 390,411 | 3,429,762.86 | 463,119 | 177,175

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, Lanka Indian Oil Company, Sinopec Energy Lanka (Private) Limited

Note - The details of the petroleum product sale of Sinopec Energy Lanka Private Limited are relevant to the
time period August 2023 to 31.12.2023.
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2.2.6 Issuing License to Competitive Entities for Import, Sale and Distribution of Petroleum Products Based
on Long-term Agreements

In the foreign exchange crisis faced by the country at the beginning of 2022, the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
(CPC) and the Lanka Indian Qil Company (LIOC) had to face the difficulty of procuring the foreign exchange
required for fuel import and these two agents failed to ensure a continuous fuel supply to the market. As a
result of this, a fuel crisis was created in the country and it made a huge impact to the national economy.
As a solution to this, without utilizing the local foreign exchange reserves, following three companies were
selected as per the procurement process and contracts were signed with them for twenty years to provide
opportunities to import and sell petroleum products.

J M/s Sinopec Fuel Qil Lanka (Private) Limited
¢  M/sR.M. Parks. Inc.
e M/s United Petroleum Pvt. Ltd

Salient Feature of the Liberalization of the Petroleum Market

. Four hundred and fifty (450) fuel stations, which are located in all over the country and the
Petroleum Products are presently being supplied by the CPC have been offered under three
(03) Dealer Networks. Each dealer network comprises of 150 Fuel Stations covering 03 grades /
categories in equal manner.

. The Selected Suppliers are required to supply petroleum product to Sri Lanka using their own
forex at least minimum one year period

. The selected suppliers will have to pay an Annual License fee of USD 2,000,000 to the Ministry of
Power and Energy.

. The license will be initially for a period of Twenty (20) years, which may be extended/ renewed
through the negotiation and mutual consent of the parties to the Contract.

2.2.7 Extension of the Petroleum Product Distribution Licenses of Lanka Indian Oil Company (LIOC)

The validity period of the license issued to import and distribute petroleum products to Lanka Indian Oil
Company (LIOC) was ended from 22.01.2024 and the validation period of the license is extended for 20 years.
According to the new license conditions, Lanka Indian Oil Company also should pay an annual fee of 2,000,000
USD to the government.

2.2.8 Widening Market Opportunities to Supply Jet A-1 fuel used in Aircraft

Jet A-1 fuel Used in the aircraft is supplied under the monopoly of Ceylon Petroleum Corporation. The
Sapugaskanda refinery belongs to Ceylon Petroleum Corporation produces a major part of the Jet A-1 fuel
necessity of aircraft and the rest isimported. However, due to the foreign exchange crisis faced by the country,
it was a challenging factor import crude oil needed to maintain the refinery continuously as well as the
importation of Jet A-1 fuel and therefore on several occasions it was unable to supply Jet A-1 fuel to airlines.
In this situation, to ensure a continuous supply of fuel, steps were taken to reserve market opportunities under
the maximum supply limits for the parties that supply Jet A-1 fuel to the airlines of other countries so that
it does not hinder the product supplied by the Sapugaskanda oil refinery of Ceylon Petroleum Corporation.

Accordingly, Jet A-1 fuel licenses were issued to the Fits Aviation (Pvt) Ltd. and the Cannel (Pvt) Ltd. under the

charge of a compulsory annual registration fee of 10,000 USD in creating these new business opportunities
and additionally charging a variable fee of 0.1% of the annual sales volume.
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2.2.9 Liberalization of the Lubricant Market of Sri Lanka and the Selection of New Entrants

As per the powers vested to the then Minister by the Petroleum Corporation Act, in compliance with the
policy published by the Extra-ordinary gazette notification No. 1453/6 and dated 12.07.2006 the lubricant
market was fully liberalized, but a specified timeframe was not recognized to the lubricant industrialists to
enter into the lubricant market. Therefore, new entrants faced uncertainty in entering the country's lubricant
market. Although the lubricant market is being innovative day by day, due to this uncertainty, it is obvious that
there is a delay in entering the quality, innovative and competitive products to the market.

Eleven (11) new entrants were selected during the year 2023 as per the procurement guidelines to
promote free market operation by increasing the access of new entrants to the lubricant market and thus
provide consumers with the opportunity to purchase lubricants at a more competitive price. Accordingly,
35 competitive institutions engage in the country’s lubricant market and in order to create equal business
opportunities for all qualified parties in the future, the approval of the Cabinet of Ministers has gained to
provide opportunities to enter the market once in three years.

2.2.10 Formulation of Regulations Governing the Petroleum Industry

The Ministry of Power and Energy and the Petroleum Development Authority regulate the petroleum industry
while the Minister of the Ministry of Power and Energy publishes the needed regulations, orders and guidelines
from time to time. The Minister of Power and Energy published the below-mentioned regulations and orders
in 2023 for the regulation of the petroleum industry.

(a) Regulations Relating to the Upstream Petroleum Industry

] Petroleum Resources (Joint Study Agreements) Regulations No. 01 of 2003
These orders were made by the Minister of Power and Energy under the powers of the Petroleum
Resources Act No. 21 of 2021, providing for joint studies within the designated areas as determined
and demarcated by the Sri Lanka Petroleum Development Authority. These orders will make it
easier to attract investors for petroleum exploration activities.

o Petroleum Resources (Service provider Licensing) Regulations No. 2 of 2023
These orders were made by the Minister of Power and Energy in accordance with the powers of
the Petroleum Resources Act No. 21 of 2021 to streamline the provision of services for petroleum
exploration activities. Accordingly, all service providers must be registered under the Petroleum
Development Authority of Sri Lanka.

(b) Regulations Relating to the Downstream Petroleum Industry

e Petroleum Products Licensing Regulations No. 1 of 2023
Under the powers of the Petroleum Products (Special Provisions) Act No. 33 of 2002, these orders
were made by the Minister of Power and Energy promulgating the conditions applicable to grant
a license to import, export, sell, supply or distribute of petroleum in Sri Lanka and the general
conditions applicable to such licensee.

2.2.11 Determination of the Fuel Price According to the Fuel Price Formula

As the fuel price directly affects the national economy as well as the political stability of the government
party, most of the governments are not willing to follow a transparent methodology when deciding the fuel
price. Due to that, the fuel price did not demonstrate its cost and it adversely affect the sustainability of fuel
distributors and in some occasions even ensuring the national fuel supply was at risk. By considering this
situation, the Ministry of Power and Energy introduces a transparent fuel price which reflects the cost for fuel
in June 2022 and the maximum price for fuel is stated by the Minister of Power and Energy in the first week
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of every month by publishing in the gazette. The fuel-supplying agents are bound to work in accordance with
the published maximum price.

The fuel price formula has created an opportunity for fuel suppliers to provide a competitive price to the
customer based on the institutional efficiency and an opportunity has created to provide the advantage of
the reduction in international fuel prices to the local fuel customer. In 2023, the fuel price was revised in 12
occasions according to the fuel price formula.

Figures 2.2.1
The behavior of the Petroleum Product Sales Price as per the Fuel Price Formula
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Lanka Super Diesel

600 140

500 - — - 120 F
S \/ / S 100 &
& 400 @
- o —— w 2
2300 3
& / “e0 =

200 - L 40

100 L 20

0 : : : : : 0

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May. Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Month

Price (Rs/L)-2022 ——— Price (Rs/L)-2023 ——— Price (USS$/bbl)-2023

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

2.2.12 Introducing the National Fuel Pass to Formalize the Fuel Distribution

The National Fuel Pass was introduced as one of the management strategy to control the fuel crisis started at
the beginning of 2022. By providing a fuel guarantee for all vehicles through the National Fuel Pass, the fuel
gueues in the country ended. All fuel stations owned by the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and the Lanka
Indian Oil Company were well managed in accordance with the National Fuel Pass system.

However, due to factors such as the gradual stabilization of the country’s macro economy and the entry of
foreign competitive companies into the local fuel market, the local fuel demand was able to be adequately
supplied. Accordingly, since there was no longer a need to issue fuel through fuel permits, the National Fuel
Pass System was terminated from August 31, 2023.

2.2.13 Assisting for the Financial Stability of the Ceylon Petroleum Corporation

Due to the increase the debt amount of Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, the debt sustainability of the
corporation has lost and the amount of dollar debt to be paid on 31.12.2022 is USD 3404.25 million

Table 2.2.7
Details of Ceylon Petroleum Statutory Corporation Dollar debt due as at 31.12.2022

Description Debt Amount Total

(Mn of USD) (Mn of USD)

USD loan amount to be paid to local commercial banks

01 Peoples Bank 1,362.65 2,456.25
Bank of Ceylon 1,093.60
Other USD loan amount to be paid

02 National Iran Oil Company 248.00 948.00
To the general treasury under the 700.00

Indian credit Line

Total 3404.25

Source: Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
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Based on the Cabinet decision No. 23/0154/604/014 and dated 30.01.2023, USD 2456.25 million amount of
depth payable to local state commercial banks was transferred to the General Treasury. Further, the Cabinet
of Ministers has given approval to the Secretary of the Treasury to use the excise tax levied on petroleum
products to service the debt transferred to the Treasury. As a result of that, the net profit of the corporation
increased due to the reduction of loan premiums and interest payment expenses.

2.2.14 Infrastructure Development Programs Related to the Petroleum Section
(a) Establishment of a Petroleum Refinery and Related Product Processing Center in Hambantota

The Ministry of Power and Energy called expressions of interests from qualified investors on 24.02.2023
to establish an export-oriented petroleum refinery in Hambantota and the below two institutes qualified
to submit detailed proposals among the called expressions of interests were informed to submit detailed
proposals.

e M/s. China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation
e M/s. Vitol Asia Pte Ltd.

Accordingly, only the Sinopec (China Petroleum and Chemical Corporation) submitted the detailed
proposal and after the evaluation of that proposal, Sinopec was invited to discuss the project agreement
on the approval of Cabinet of Ministers. Cabinet Appointed Negotiation Committee (CANC) is discussing
the project agreement with Sinopec and these discussions are in the final stage. With the final agreement
they expect to sign the project agreement and Sinopec planned to end up the constructions of the refinery
by 2028.

Key Features of the Project

e The capacity of the refinery — Minimum 100,000 barrels per day
e Expected Investment- USD 1.5 billion — USD 2 billion
e Expected Project Period — 2024 — 2027

(b) The Developments of Trincomalee Upper Tank Farm

The Upper Tank Farm at China Bay, Trincomalee consist of 99 Nos. identical Steel Storage Tanks with a
capacity of 10,000 MT in each. These tanks have been constructed by the British Government in the
colonial era to supply fuel for ships. The Cabinet of Ministers having considered the opportunity of using
these tanks for the benefit of the country, has decided via its Decision No. 21/2285/325/050 dated
11.01.2022 to develop the tank farm by leasing out tanks to following companies by signing a modality
agreement.

e 24 0il Tanks to Ceylon Petroleum Corporation
e 14 Tanks to Lanka Indian Qil Corporation (LIOC)
e 61 tanks to the newly formed company Trinco Petroleum Terminal (Pvt) Ltd (TPTL)

Accordingly, a “Modality Agreement for the Possession, Development and Use of the China Bay Qil Tank
Farm was signed on 06.01.2022. Later on, Trincomalee Petroleum Terminal (Private) Limited and Ceylon
Petroleum Corporation got the approval to tank development affairs from the Department of National
Planning and initiated the selection procedure of a suitable investor.
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Plan of the Chaina Bay Oil Tank Farm

2.2.15 Future Plans

By considering the significance and the contribution done by the Energy sector to the national economy;, it is
planned to implement the below programmes in the future to make the country self-sufficient in energy by
ensuring the energy security of the country.

(a) Accelerating the Exploration of Domestic Petroleum and Natural Gas

The initial steps have been taken to develop the natural gas found in the Mannar Basin so that it can be
taken to domestic consumption in the future years. As measures to ensure the legal and institutional
framework which is expected by the upstream petroleum industry for a long time, Petroleum Resources
Act No. 21 of 2021 was enacted and Petroleum Development Authority of Sri Lanka was established in the
previous years while the publication of a new exploration block map and publication of new regulations
were done in 2023.

With the enforcement of all the relevant regulations in the future, it is expected to call expressions of
interest from the international investors and to approach the Joint Studies Agreements with the investors
to bring the exploration blocks to the market.

(b) Construction of the Export-oriented Fuel Refinery

The specific geographical location and the location of the international harbors around the country
nearby international major sea routes have increased the available potential for the expansion of ship-oil
trade. Taking these facts into consideration, Sinopec was selected by following a procurement process to
establish an export-oriented petroleum refinery near Hambantota. Accordingly, the project agreement
discussions are going on with this company to construct a refinery with the capacity of 100,000 Bbls per
day and these activities are in the final stage. Further, it is expected to construct another fuel refinery near
Trincomalee and the available feasibility study is ongoing.
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Chaprer [

Overall Financial Performance for the year ended
31t December 2023

Basis of Reporting
1) Reporting Period

The reporting period for these Financial Statements is from 01st January to 31 December 2023.
2) Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost modified by the revaluation of certain
assets and accounted on a modified cash basis, unless otherwise specified.

The figures of the Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan rupees rounded to the nearest rupee.
3) Recognition of Revenue

Exchange and non-exchange revenues are recognised on the cash receipts during the accounting period
irrespective of relevant revenue period.

4) Recognition and Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E)

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefit
associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be reliably measured.
PP&E are measured at a cost and revaluation model is applied when cost model is not applicable.

5) Property, Plant and Equipment Reserve
This reserve account is the corresponding account of Property Plant and Equipment.

6) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents include local currency notes and coins in hand as at 31 December 2023.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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3.1 Statement of Financial Performance Report

ACA-F
Ministry of Power & Energy
Statement of Financial Performance
for the Period 31st December 2023
3.1 Financial Performance
Revised Budget Note Actual
Allocations 2023
2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs.
- Revenue Receipts - -
- Income Tax 1 - -
- Tax on Domestic & Services 2 -1 888-1
- Taxes on International Trade 3 - -
1,500,000,000 Non Tax Revenue & Others 4 1,724,530,475 187,216,484
- Total Revenue Receipts (A) 1,724,530,475 187,216,484
- Non-Revenue Receipts - -
- Treasury Imp rests 2,190,981,500 351,503,427 &8-3
- Deposits 5,054,780 4,572,289 &88-4
- Advance Accounts 11,878,897 12,228,383  S8-5
Other Main Ledger Receipts - -
- Total Non-Revenue Receipts (B) 2,207,915,177 368,304,099
Total Revenue Receipts & Non-Revenue 3,932,445,652 555,520,583
1,500,000,000 Receipts C=(A)+(B)
Remittance to the Treasury (D) 198,628,192 49,321,393
Net Revenue Receipts & Non-Revenue 3,733,817,460 506,199,190
Receipts E=(C)-(D)
Less : Expenditure
- Revenue Expenditure - -
192,850,000 Wages, Salaries & other Employment Benefits 5 163,839,665 164,824,462
320,002,000 Other Good & Services 6 237,439,889 225,810,769 | S8e-2(ii
498,780,000 Subsidies, Grants and Transfers 7 312,925,050 259,807,879
- Interest Payments 8 - -
168,000 Other Recurrent Expenditure 9 67,884 -
1,011,800,000 Total Recurrent Expenditure (F) 714,272,488 650,443,110
Capital Expenditure -
14,980,000 Rehabilitation & Improvement of Capital 10 11,333,067 2,566,903
3,600,000 ﬁzze:issition of Capital Assets 11 975,471 11,583,338
38,510,260,000 Capita Transfers 12 12,566,391,531 37,945,845,459 r¥a&-2(ii
- Acquisition of Financial Assets 13 - 228,770,919,566
- Capacity Building 14 - 14,250
876,500,000 Other Capita Expenditure 15 - 62,495,925 -
39,405,340,000 Total Capital Expenditure (G) 12,578,700,069 266,793,425,441
Deposit Payments 5,543,323 4,951,570 S88-4
Advance Payments 12,908,270 24,418,381 &88-5
Other Main Ledger Payment - -
Total Main Ledger Expenditure (H) 18,451,593 29,369,951
Total Expenditure I = (F+G+H) 13,311,424,150 267,473,238,502
Balance as at 315t December J = (E-I) (9,577,606,690) (266,967,039,312)
(38,917,140,000)
Balance as per the Imprest Adjustment (9,577,606,690) (266,967,039,312) S88-7
Statement
Imprest Balance as at 31st December - - 388-3

(9,577,606,690) (266,967,039,312)

Ministry of Power and Energy
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3.2 Statement of Financial Position

ACA-P

Ministry of Power & Energy
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st December 2023

Note

Non Financial Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment ACA-6
Financial Assets

Advance Accounts ACA-5/5(a)
Cash & Cash Equivalents ACA-3

Total Assets

Net Assets / Equity

Net Worth to Treasury
Property, Plant & Equipment Reserve
Rent and Work Advance Reserve ACA-5(b)

Current Liabilities

Deposits Accounts ACA4
Unsettled Imprest Balance ACA-3
Total Liabilities

. Ac‘tual
2023 2022
Rs Rs

751,947,297

30,796,463

782,743,760

20,181,074
751,947,297
9,550,000

1,065,389

782,743,760

Detail Accounting Statements in ACA format Nos. 1 to 7 preé'énted in pages from 7 to 64 and Annexures to
accounts presented in pages from 65 to 107 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The Financial
Statements have been prepared in complying with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles whereas most
appropriate Accounting Policies are used as disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements and hereby certify
that figures in these Finacial Statements, Notes to accounts and other relevant accounts were reconciled with the

Treasury Books of Accounts and found in agreement.

We hereby certify that an effective internal control system for the financial control exists in the Reporting Entity and
carried out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of internal control system for the financial control and
accordingly make alterations as required for such systems to be cffectively carried out.

Chief Accounting Officer
Name : Name :

Designation : Designation :
Date: 21. 02. 2 024

Date : g;/g/9024

o

Chief Financial Officer/ Ghief-Aeeountant/

Date: 9. 2+ 2 0RY

Dr. Sulakshana Jayawardena S. A. SRlYlﬁ\é‘lE‘ OFFICER

Dr. Sulakshana Jayawardena Secretary

Secretary Ministry of Power and Energy
Ministry of Power and Energy

No 80, Sir Ernest De Silva Mawatha, Colombo 7.

Colombo 7.

[EF FINA
%ATN‘STRY OF POWER & ENERGY

No. 437, GALLE ROAD

No 80, Sir Ernest De Silva Mawatha, COLOMBO-03.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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3.3 Statement of Cash Flows

Ministry of power & Energy
Statement of Cash Flows

from the Period ended 31t December 2023

3.2 Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Total Tax Receipts

Fees, Fines, Penalties and Licenses

Profit

Non Revenue Receipts

Revenue Collected on behalf of other Revenue Heads
Imprest Receipts

Recoveries from Advance

Deposit Received

Total Cash Generated from Operations (A)
Less : Cash disbursed for:

Personal Emoluments & Operating Payments
Subsidies & Transfer Payments

Expenditure incurred on behalf of Other Heads
Imprest Settlements to Treasury

Advance Payments

Deposit Payments

Total Cash disbursed for operations (B)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (C)=(A)-(B)

Cash Flows from investing Activities

Interest

Dividends

Dividends Proceeds & Sales of physical Assets
Recoveries from on Lending

Total Cash Generated from investing Activities (D)

Less : Cash disbursed for:
Capital Expenditure
Total Cash disbursed for investing Activities (E)

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ( F)=(D)-(E)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING & INVESTING ACTIVITIES (G)=(

C)+ (F)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

LOCIAL BORROWINGS

FOREIGN BORROWINGS

Grants Receives

Total Cash generated from Financing Activities (H)

less : cash disbursed for:

Repayment of LOCIAL BORROWINGS

Repayment of foreign BORROWINGS

Total Cash disbursed from Financing Activities (I)
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities (J)=(H)-(I)
Net Movement in Cash (K) = (G)+(J)

Opening Cash Balance as at 015t january

Closing Cash Balance as at 31st December

Ministry of Power and Energy

ACA-C
Actual
2023 2022
Rs. Rs.

453,923,675 62,215,705
7,601,420 7,032,790
2,190,981,500 351,503,427
10,264,823 22,229,674
5,054,780 3,209,631

2,667,826,198

446,191,224

400,383,012
122,336,686
1,873,034
198,628,192
13,158,270
5,543,323

255,441,318
8,974,183
14,165,294
49,321,393
21,266,968
3,026,648

741,922,517

352,195,804

1,925,903,681 93,995,420
1,925,903,681 93,995,420
1,925,903,681 93,995,420
1,925,903,681 93,995,420
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3.4 Performance of the Revenue Gollection

Original Estimate Collected Revenue
— . . As a % of
Revenue Description of the Original Revenue -7
R . Amount Final
Code Revenue Code Estimate Estimate
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) Revenue
’ : Estimate
Non-tax incomes and
other fees relevant to the
20-03-02-21 L. 200,000,000 | 1,500,000,000 | 1,724,530,475 114%
Ministry of Petroleum
Industry
3.5 Performance of the Utilization of Allocation
Allocation Allocation
Actual ————
. L. . . Utilization as a
Type of Allocation Original Final Expenditure % of Final
()
5 . Rs. X
(Rs.) (Rs.) i) Allocation
Recurrent 1,000,000,000 | 1,011,800,000 714,272,488 71%
Capital 36,200,000,000 | 39,405,340,000 12,578,700,069 32%
3.6 In Terms of F.R.208 Grant of Allocations for Expenditure
Allocation Allocation RIEZERET
. Actual Utilization
Received from Purpose of the Type of the .
. .. . . .. ) Expenditure as a % of
Which Ministry Allocation Allocation Original Final (Rs.) Final
Department ) . ’ .
/Dep (Rs.) (Rs.) Allocation
Free train warrant
Railway issued to the
1 ) Recurrent 964,425 964,425 964,425 100%
Department officers of the
Ministry
Department of Accounted the
2 | Treasury foreign debt got by Capital 36,000,000,000 | 36,000,000,000 | 10,178,051,962 28%
Operations CTB
Department of sri La.nka
3 | Treasury Sustainable Energy Recurrent 145,000,000 145,000,000 106,915,364 74%
Operations Authority
Department of Sri La.nka
4 | Treasury SUSta'”.ab'e Energy Capital 50,000,000 50,000,000 33,900,000 68%
Operations Authority
Department of . .
5 | Treasury Sri Lanka Atomic Recurrent 34,000,000 34,000,000 34,000,000 100%
. Energy Board
Operations
Department of . .
6 | Treasury Sri Lanka Atomic Capital 50,000,000 50,000,000 19,183,000 38%
. Energy Board
Operations
Department of . .
7 | Treasury SriLanka Atomic Recurrent 55,000,000 55,000,000 41,073,000 82%
. Regulatory Council
Operations
Department of . .
8 | Treasury Sri Lanka Atomic Capital 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000 100%
) Regulatory Council
Operations
9 | srilanka Custom | Diesel donation Capital -| 415,060,000 | 414,661,429 |  99.9%
from China
Department of Petroleum
10 | Treasury Development Recurrent 78,000,000 78,000,000 8,600,000 11%
Operations Authority
Department of Petroleum
11 | Treasury Development Capital 75,000,000 75,000,000 - -
Operations Authority
-47- Ministry of Power and Energy
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3.7 Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial Assets

Assets Code Code Balance as per | Balance as per Yet to be Reporting
Description Board of Financial Accounted Progress as a
Survey Report Position (Rs.) %
as at Report as at
31.12.2023 31.12.2022
(Rs.) (Rs.)
9151 Building and - - -
Structures
9152 Machinery and | 738,343,143.79 | 738,343,143.79 100%
Equipment
9153 Land - - -
9154 Intangible 8,138,136.00 8,138,136.00 100%
Assets
9155 Biological - - -
Assets
9160 Work in - - -
Progress
9180 Lease Assets - - -

3.8 Auditor General’s Report

Note: Auditor General’s Report 2023 is attached as Annexure 1.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Performance Indicators of the Ministry

4.1 Performance Indicators of the Ministry (Based on the Action Plan)

Actual Output as
Specific Indicators Target a percentage (%)
of the Expected
Output
Key Performance Indicators Product Performance Indicators
2023 2023
(KPI) (PPI)
Power Sector
Supply of service connections to the
01. Electrification rate of the public as per the demand. Expansion
country of the power distribution network of | 100% 98.2%
the country to increase the
accessibility to electricity.
02. Total Installed capacity of Implementation of Power
the National Grid generation plan based on the long- 100% 87%
term requirements of the country
03. Share of Renewable Implementation of Renewable
gnergy in the FOta| El.'\ergy PrF)jects (Hydro, Wind, .solar, 100% 40%
eneration Mix Biomass) in the country including
large scale Renewable Energy Parks.
Implementation of 220 kV and 132
04. Length of High Voltage kV transmission lines to evacuate
Transmission Network the power generated from the 100% 75%
generation facilities and to transmit
into the load centers
Energy Sector
01. Regulatory Framework for | 1.1 Establish a strong regulatory 50% 100%
Downstream Petroleum framework for Fuel Filling
Industry Stations.
1.2 Introd'uce' quicy measures for 50% 100%
the Distribution of Petroleum
Products.
02. Availability of Petroleum 2.1 Ensuring the importation of 100% 100%
Products adequately petroleum products
2.2 Fuel availability of fuel filling 100% 99%
stations
03. Arobust framework of
statutory, regulatory and
institutional arrangements | 3.1 Establish a strong regulatory 50% 100%
to bring about effective framework for upstream
behavioral of Producers, petroleum industry
Suppliers, Operators and 3.2 National Policy for the 40% 85%
Consumers of Petroleum upstream petroleum industry
Exploration Industry.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Chaprer [

Performance of the achieving Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs)

5.1 SDGs of the Power Sector

SDG Goal 7- Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all, Lack of access
to energy supplies and transformation system is a constraint to human and economic development. The
environment provides a series of renewable and nonrenewable energy sources i.e. solar, wind, hydropower,
geothermal, biofuels, natural gas, coal and petroleum.

Increased use of fossil fuels without actions to mitigate greenhouse gases will have global climate change
implications. Energy efficiency and increase the use of renewables contribute to climate change mitigation
and disaster risk reduction.

Accordingly, power sector has contributed to the following activities.

e Improving the distribution network for 98.2% of total household electrification and ensuring a
quality distribution of power.

e Enhancing the accessibility upto 100% for electricity in the country.

e Supplying 60% of the electricity share of the total generation mix by Renewable Energy sources.
e Integrating 812 MW of Rooftop Solar power capacity to the National Grid by 2023.

e Saving 737 GWh of energy through efficient energy use Programmes in 2023.

5.2 ldentified respective Sustainable Development Targets

e ¢ Progress of the
ndicators o
Goal / Targets the Achievement to date

Objectives Achievement | 0%-49% | 50%- | 75%-
74% 100%

Improvement of the
distribution network for 100%
domestic electrification level
and high-quality power supply

Electrification
level of the 99.9%
country

Percentage of
Increase the share of g

. Renewable
Renewable Energy in the total
Ensure access . . energy 60%
generation mix to 70% by L
to affordable, generation in the
. 2030. .
reliable, total energy mix
sustainable I Connected 812
Increase the contribution of
and modern . MW of rooftop
energy for all renewable energy in the solar power
electricity generation by . 100%
. capacity to the
enhancing rooftop solar R .
ower development national grid by
P P 2022
Energy saving through
efficient energy use 737 GWh energy
. 59%
Programme) saving

(1243 GWh by 2025)

Ministry of Power and Energy
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5.3 Identified respective Sustainable Development Goals

Achievements

1. Enhancement of the level of electrification up to 99.9% in Sri Lanka.
2. Has been able to maintain an attractive share of Renewable Energy contribution in electricity
generation and Year & Share of Renewable Energy in electricity generation is as follows.
Year Share of Renewable Energy in
Generation
2022 49%
2023 60%
3. Launched the Battle for Energy (Soorya Bala Sangramaya) programme.
Under the “Battle for Energy” programme, 662 MW of Renewable Energy Capacity by 45,785 of
Solar roof top systems has been integrated into the National Power System by the end of 2022, and
further it has been to increase it upto 812 MW in 2023.
Challenges
1. Technical Challenges in terms of the inadequacy of ancillary systems to support the Grid in
Renewable Energy integration
2. Renewable Energy is on Demand, which requires storage solutions, Cost- effective batteries, pump
hydro solutions.
3. High Cost of the renewable energy technologies and hence require large scale investments for
renewable energy developments.
4. Climate Changes
Irregularly in the weather is severly affecting the Hydro power generation and power generation
through Biomass production and Agro-residue.
5. Social Issues in Renewable Energy generation.
o Conflicts with wildlife and forest areas
e Conflicts with villagers.
6. Achieving the targets pertaining to Nationally Determined Contributions (NDCs) in reduction of

Carbondioxide (CO,) level by 2030
e 5% Voluntary Action — Unconditionally — to reduce environmental carbon dioxide

e 20% Supported Action- Conditionally- to reduce environmental carbon dioxide under
the situations of international participation.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Human Resource Profile

6.1 Cadre Management

Position Ap::;;r‘;)r\;ed Existing Cadre \::::::;;: */

Power Section
Senior 24 13 11
Tertiary 03 01 02
Secondary 73 65 08
Primary 39 32 07
Temporary - - -
Sub Total 139 111 28
Energy Section
Senior 23 12 11
Tertiary 03 01 02
Secondary 52 41 11
Primary 22 19 03
Sub Total 100 73 27

Total 239 184 55

Source: Ministry of Power and Energy

6.2 Impact of the Shortage or Excess in Human Resource on Performance of the Ministry

Twenty two (22) senior position vacancies and Thirty Three (33) other position’s vacancies are available and
occasionally the Ministry of Public Administration, Home Affairs, Provincial Councils and Local Government
was informed about this at the ministry level. Further, the new Secretary of the ministry also has informed
about this by mentioning the vacancies in the letter dated 06.01.2024 to the relevant ministry. If the Ministry
of Public Administration, Home Affairs, Provincial Councils and Local Government could not respond urgently
in this regard, it will negatively affect the performance of the ministry. The necessary actions are taken to fill
the vacancies by updating the database based on the actual information relevant to the approved cadre of
the ministry. From the approved cadre of 47 senior positions posts of the ministry, only 25 officers are in the
service and it should be mentioned that it is 53% of the total senior positions. 19 posts are vacant from the
secondary level positions and 04 positions are vacant from the 06 approved tertiary level positions. Despite
the shortage of staff, the existing staff has fulfilled an important role in achieving the expected performance
of the ministry in 2023. If all the vacancies were filled (specially the senior positions) it will contribute a lot to
achieve the expected performance.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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6.3 Human Resource Development

Total investment Nature of

No. of Duration (Rs. ’000) the Output/
Name of the Program Staff of the Local Foreign program Knowledge
Trained Program (Foreign/ gained*
Local)

Forms of Appointment and
Transfer Policies in the 16 02 hours - - Local Success
Public service.

Training on Appropriate
Conduct and the manner
of Skills Development 20 02 hours
during the Probationary
Period of a Public Service
Appointment.

- - Local Success

Awareness on Retirement,
Pension Settlement,
Widow’s and Orphan's 29 02 hours - - Local Success
Pension Scheme and
Related processes.

Matters to be Concerened
in Maintaining Files,

Minutes Writing and 23 02 hours
Letters Writing.

- - Local Success

Awareness on

Documenting Transactions
in Accounting Books and 30 02 hours - - Local Success
Accounts Balancing.

Function of the 23 02 hours
Committee on Public
Accounts and how the - - Local Success
public officers should
work accordingly

Process of implementing
projects and the role of the 44 02 hours - - Local Success
planning section therein

The necessity of earning
salary increments and the
necessity of properly

. . . 05 03 hours - - Local Success
providing the information
related to maintaining a
personal file corectly
Tamil Language training
Programme (Secondary 11 150 hours - - Local Success

Level)

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Name of the Program

No. of
Staff
Trained

Duration
of the
Program

Total investment
(Rs. ’000)

Local Foreign

Nature of
the
program
(Foreign/
Local)

Output/
Knowledge
gained*

Properly recording the
transactions in the books
related to the accounts
and providing an
understanding related to
transaction balances

05

03 hours

Local

Success

Laws related to dealing
with government land and
procedures to be followed
in acquiring and disposing
of land for development
purposes

03

01 Day

Local

Success

Procurement methods
and the procedures to be
followed in each
procurement method

06

04 hours

Local

Success

Evaluation of Bids and
preparation of Bid
evaluation reports

03

01 Day

Local

Success

The factors that should be
considered in driving a
vehicle, daily observation
of the vehicle, vehicle
maintenance and the
basic industrial knowledge

05

05 hours

Local

Success

Source: Ministry of Power and Energy

Training and development programs help employees attract and retain top talent, increase job satisfaction,
improve productivity, and address deficiencies identified in their performance reviews. Also, a clear view and
understanding is given on how to complete their duties and tasks in a given time frame. Training also helps
improve workplace performance management.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Chaprer
Compliance Report
Compliance . .
S Brief Corrective ACtIOI:IS
No. Applicable Requirement (Compliance/ Explanation for Proposed t‘.) AVO'.d
Not Nl Non-Compliance in
Future
Compliance)
1. The following Financial Statements/Accounts have been submitted on due date.
1.1 Annual Financial Statements Compliance
1.2 Advance to Public Officers Compliance
Account
1.3 Trading and Manufacturing
Advance Accounts (Commercial
Advance Accounts) Not Relevant
1.4 Stores Advance Accounts
1.5 Special Advance Accounts
1.6 Others
2 Maintenance of Books and Registers (F.R.445)
2.1 Fixed assets register has been Compliance
maintained and update in terms
of Public Administration Circular
267/2018.
2.2 Personal emoluments register/ Compliance
Personal emoluments cards has
been maintained and updated
2.3 Register of Audit queries has Compliance
been maintained and updated
2.4 Register of Internal Audit reports Compliance
has been maintained and
updated.
2.5 All  the monthly account Compliance
summaries (CIGAS) are prepared
and submitted to the Treasury on
due date
2.6 Register for cheques and money Compliance
orders has been maintained and
updated
2.7 Inventory register has been Compliance
maintained and updated
2.8 Stocks  Register has been Compliance
maintained and updated
2.9 Register of Losses has been Compliance
maintained and updated
2.10 | Commitment Register has been Compliance
maintained and updated.

Ministry of Power and Energy
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Compliance/
Not
Compliance)

Brief
Explanation for
Non-Compliance

Corrective Actions

Proposed to Avoid

Non-Compliance in
Future

2.11

Register of Counterfoil Books
(GA-N20) has been maintained
and updated.

Compliance

03

Delegation of functions for financ

ial control (F.R. 135)

3.1

The financial authority has been
delegated within the institute

Compliance

3.2

The delegation of financial
authority has been
communicated within the
institute.

Compliance

3.3

The authority has been delegated
in such manner so as to pass each
transaction through two or more
officers

Compliance

3.4

The controls has been adhered
to by the Accountants in terms
of State Account Circular
171/2004 dated 11.05.2014 in
using the Government Payroll
Software Package

Compliance

Preparation of Annual Plans

The Annual Action Plan has been
Prepared.

Compliance

4.2

The Annual Procurement Plan
has been prepared.

Compliance

4.3

The Annual Internal Audit Plan
has been prepared.

Not Relevant

4.4

The Annual Estimate has been
prepared and submitted to the
National Budget Department
(NBD) on due date.

Compliance

4.5

The Annual Cash Flow has been
submitted to the Treasury
Operations Department on time

Compliance

Audit queries

All the Audit Queries has been
replied within the specified time
by the Auditor General

Compliance

6. Internal Audit

6.1

The Internal Audit Plan has been
prepared at the beginning of the
year after consulting the Auditor
General in terms of F.R.134(2)
DMA/1-2019

Compliance

6.2

All the Internal Audit Reports has
been replied within one month

Not Compliance

Some Internal
Audit Queries

have not been
replied within
one month.

Informing the
heads of the
division.
Discuss in the
Audit &
Management

Ministry of Power and Energy
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Compliance/
Not
Compliance)

Brief
Explanation for
Non-Compliance

Corrective Actions

Proposed to Avoid

Non-Compliance in
Future

Committee
meetings.
Following -up on
receiving
responses to
Internal Audit
Queries.

6.3

Copies of all the Internal Audit
Reports has been submitted to
the Management Audit
Department in terms of Sub-
section 40(4) of the National
Audit Act No. 19 of 2018

Compliance

6.4

All the copies of Internal Audit

Reports has been submitted to
the Auditor General in terms of
Financial Regulation 134(3).

Compliance

Audit and Management Committee

Minimum 04 meetings of the
Audit and Management
Committee has been held during
the year as per the DMA Circular
1-2019

Compliance

Asset Management

The information about purchases
of assets and disposals was
submitted to the Comptroller
General's Office in terms of
Paragraph 07 of the Asset
Management Circular No.
01/2017

Compliance

8.2

A suitable liaison officer was
appointed to coordinate the
implementation of the provisions
of the circular and the details of
the nominated officer was sent
to the Comptroller General's
Office in terms of Paragraph 13 of
the aforesaid circular

Compliance

8.3

The boards of survey was
conducted and the relevant
reports submitted to the Auditor
General on due date in terms of
Public Finance Circular No.
05/2016.

Compliance

8.4

The excesses and deficits that
were disclosed through the
Board Of Survey and other
relating recommendations,
actions were carried out during
the period specified in the
Circular.

Compliance

Ministry of Power and Energy
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Compliance/
Not
Compliance)

Brief

Explanation for
Non-Compliance

Corrective Actions

Proposed to Avoid

Non-Compliance in
Future

8.5

The disposal of condemn articles
had been carried out in terms of
F.R. 772

Compliance

Vehicle Management

The daily running charts and
monthly summaries of the pool
vehicles had been prepared and
submitted to the Auditor General
on due date.

Compliance

9.2

The condemned vehicles had
been disposed of within a period
of less than 6 months after
condemning.

Compliance

9.3

The vehicle logbooks had been
maintained and updated.

Compliance

9.4

The action has been taken in
terms of F.R. 103, 104, 109 and
110 with regard to every vehicle
accident.

Compliance

Actions are
taken as per
104(03),
104(04).

9.5

The fuel consumption of vehicles
has been re-tested in terms of the
provisions of Paragraph 3.1 of the
Public Administration Circular
No. 30/2016 of 29.12.2016.

Not Compliance

There were practical issues in testing
fuel consumption due to the limitation
of fuel provided limiting the supply to
80 liters per month. Further, given the
vehicles are used only for essential
purposes, the Additional Secretary
(Admin) has instructed to proceed
based on previous fuel consumption
until the situation gets back to normal.

9.6

The absolute ownership of the
leased vehicle log books has been
transferred after the lease term

Compliance

10

Management of Bank Accounts

10.1

The bank reconciliation
statements had been prepared,
got certified and made ready for
audit by the due date

Compliance

10.2

The dormant accounts that had
existed in the year under review
or since previous years settled

Compliance

10.3

The action had been taken in
terms of Financial Regulations
regarding balances that had been
disclosed through bank
reconciliation statements and for
which adjustments had to be
made, and had those balances
been settled within one month.

Compliance

11

Utilization of Provisions

111

The provisions allocated had
been spent without exceeding
the limit.

Compliance

11.2

The liabilities not exceeding the

Compliance

Ministry of Power and Energy
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Compliance/
Not
Compliance)

Brief

Explanation for
Non-Compliance

Corrective Actions

Proposed to Avoid

Non-Compliance in
Future

provisions that remained at the
end of the year as per the F.R.
94(1)

12

Advances to Public Officers

Account

121

The limits had been Compliance
with

Compliance

12.2

A time analysis had been carried
out on the loans in arrears.

Compliance

12.3

The loan balances in arrears for
over one year had been settled.

Compliance

13

General Deposit Account

131

The action had been taken as per
F.R.571 in relation to disposal of
lapsed deposits.

Compliance

13.2

The control register for general
deposits had been updated and
maintained.

Compliance

14

Imprest Account

141

The balance in the cash book at
the end of the year under review
remitted to Treasury Operations
Department.

Compliance

14.2

The ad-hoc sub imprests issued
as per F.R. 371 settled within one
month from the completion of
the task

Compliance

14.3

The ad-hoc sub imprests had
been issued exceeding the limit
approved as per F.R. 371

Compliance

14.4

The balance of the imprest
account had been reconciled
with the Treasury books monthly.

Compliance

15

Revenue Account

15.1

The refunds from the revenue
had been made in terms of the
regulations

Compliance

15.2

The revenue collection had been
directly credited to the revenue
account without credited to the
deposit account.

Compliance

15.3

Returns of arrears of revenue
forward to the Auditor General in
terms of F.R. 176.

Compliance

16

Human Resource Management

16.1

The staff had been paid within
the approved cadre.

Compliance

16.2

All members of the staff have
been issued a duty list in writing.

Compliance

16.3

All reports have been submitted
to MSD in terms of their circular
no.04/2017 dated 20.09.2017

Compliance

Ministry of Power and Energy
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No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status
(Compliance/
Not
Compliance)

Brief
Explanation for
Non-Compliance

Corrective Actions

Proposed to Avoid

Non-Compliance in
Future

17

Provision of information to the Public

17.1

An information officer has been
appointed and a proper register
of information is maintained and
updated in terms of Right To
Information Act and Regulation.

Compliance

17.2

Information about the
institution to the public have
been provided by Website or
alternative measures and has it
been facilitated to
appreciate/allegation to public
against the public authority by
this website or alternative
measures.

Compliance

17.3

Bi- Annual and Annual reports
have been submitted as per
section 08 and 10 of the RTI Act.

Compliance

18

Implementing citizens charter

18.1

A citizens charter/ Citizens
client’s charter has been
formulated and implemented by
the Institution in terms of the
circular number 05/2008 and
05/2018(1) of Ministry of Public
Administration and
Management.

Compliance

18.2

A methodology has been devised
by the Institution in order to
monitor and assess the
formulation and the
implementation of  Citizens
Charter/ Citizens client’s charter
as per paragraph 2.3 of the
circular

Compliance

19

Preparation of the Human Resource Plan

19.1

A human resource plan has been
prepared in terms of the format
in Annexure 02 of Public
Administration Circular
No.02/2018 dated 24.01.2018.

Compliance

19.2

A minimum training opportunity
of not less than 12 hours per year
for each member of the staff has
been ensured in the aforesaid
Human Resource Plan.

Compliance

19.3

Annual Performance
Agreements have been signed
for the entire staff based on the
format in Annexure 01 of the
aforesaid Circular.

Compliance

Ministry of Power and Energy
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Compliance ) .
Status Brief Corrective ACtIOI’?S
No. Applicable Requirement (Compliance/ Explanation for Proposed t? AVO'.d
. Non-Compliance in
Not Non-Compliance Future
Compliance)
19.4 | Asenior officer was appointed Compliance
and assigned the responsibility
of preparing the human
resource development plan,
organizing capacity building
programs and conducting skill
development programs as per
paragraph No.6.5 of the
aforesaid Circular.
20 Responses Audit Paras
20.1 | The short comings pointed out in Compliance
the audit paragraphs issued by
the Auditor General for the
previous years have been
rectified

-71- Ministry of Power and Energy
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